

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

HOUSE REDISTRICTING COMMITTEE

Chairperson, Lou Lang

SPECIAL HOUSE COMMITTEE ON REDISTRICTING

PUBLIC HEARING

Marengo Community High School

Marengo, Illinois

Saturday, April 16, 2011

10:00 a.m.

PRESENT:

Mr. Lou Lang

Mr. Jack Franks

Mr. Frank Mautino

Mr. Michael Tryon

Mr. Dave Winters

Ms. Emily DeYoe

Mr. Dan Frey

Mr. Rich Bossert

Mr. Tom Wogan

Members of the public

1 MR. LANG: Good morning. The House
2 Special Committee on Redistricting shall come to
3 order.

4 My name is Lou Lang. I'm a state
5 representative from Skokie. I'm a member of the
6 Redistricting Committee and chairing today's
7 hearing.

8 I'd like to recognize the
9 following members of the House Redistricting
10 Committee who are present today and other
11 members of the General Assembly who are with us
12 this morning.

13 First, from McHenry County Jack
14 Franks, from Bureau County Frank Mautino, from
15 McHenry County Mike Tryon, and from Winnebago
16 County Dave Winters. We will be joined soon by
17 Tim Schmitz from DuPage County.

18 I'd like to welcome everyone and
19 thank you for coming today.

20 At the end of 2010 the United
21 States Census Bureau, as it does every decade,
22 released its 2010 population totals for
23 Illinois.

24 United States and Illinois
25 Constitutions require that in the year following

1 the census the General Assembly must redraw the
2 boundary lines of the congressional,
3 legislative, and representative districts to
4 account for the population shifts over the last
5 ten years. These hearings are a part of that
6 process.

7 The Redistricting Transparency
8 and Public Participation Act requires us to hold
9 at least four hearings throughout the state.
10 Our intention is to hold far more than that
11 minimum number.

12 Our goal is to hear from as many
13 people as possible and to ensure that this
14 process is open to all residents of our state.

15 We are holding hearings
16 throughout the state, fifteen are currently
17 scheduled, to gain as much information as
18 possible as we undertake this important task.

19 We are guided in this endeavor by
20 the United States Constitution which requires
21 that we respect the one-person-one-vote
22 principle and draw districts of substantial or
23 equal population.

24 We also will comply with the
25 Federal Voting Rights Act which requires us to

1 provide minorities an equal opportunity to
2 participate in the electoral process and elect
3 candidates of their choice.

4 At the state level the Illinois
5 Constitution requires that districts be
6 substantially equal in population, compact, and
7 contiguous.

8 Finally, the Illinois Voting
9 Rights Act further requires us to allow
10 minorities a voice in the electoral process
11 after compliance with the federal and
12 constitutional requirements that I have just
13 described.

14 In addition to these legal
15 requirements, there are countless other factors
16 that play a role in the redistricting process,
17 and we want to hear from you in considering all
18 of them without limitation.

19 We are interested in any relevant
20 demographic information such as social,
21 political, economic, religious, or any other
22 characteristics that are unique to your
23 community or to your organization.

24 We are interested in maps of your
25 community or organizations as encompassed by

1 relevant precincts or voter tabulation districts
2 or however you want to present them.

3 We want to hear your specific
4 views on any social, political, economic, or
5 religious interests commonly held in the
6 community, any specific interest groups that
7 exist, any concerns you have regarding the
8 current redistricting boundaries, and
9 suggestions for the drawing of new boundaries.

10 In short, we want to hear any
11 testimony that is relevant to the drawing of our
12 new congressional, legislative, or
13 representative districts.

14 If you have a proposed map, we
15 will take it and consider it.

16 If you want to draw your own map
17 but lack the capacity to do so, we have created
18 two public viewing stations where census and map
19 making resources will be made available to the
20 public.

21 One is located in Springfield in
22 Room 401 of the Stratton office building open
23 Monday through Friday from 8:30 a.m. to
24 4:30 p.m.

25 The second workstation, a joint

1 effort with the Senate Redistricting Committee,
2 is located on the 7th floor of the Bilandic
3 building located at 160 North LaSalle Street in
4 Chicago.

5 You can schedule an appointment
6 to access either public station by calling
7 (217) 558-3036, that's (217) 558-3036.

8 You may also submit any comments,
9 information, or proposed maps to us in person at
10 those viewing stations.

11 Finally, you may submit any
12 information or comments to us by e-mail at
13 ilredistricting@gmail.com.

14 We will transcribe the testimony
15 of these hearings and post that testimony on our
16 website, www.ilhousedems.com/redistricting.

17 Any documentary evidence we
18 receive, be it written testimony or other data
19 or proposed maps, will also be uploaded on our
20 website.

21 Our only caveat is that due to
22 security concerns we will not accept maps on a
23 disk or a flash drive. We will ask for a hard
24 copy of that map.

25 As for today we will begin with a

1 short slide-show presentation. Following that
2 brief presentation, we have a number of
3 witnesses who have indicated in advance a desire
4 to testify, and we will hear from them first.

5 Given the number of interested
6 parties, we will ask that witnesses limit their
7 testimony to five to seven minutes. We will
8 bring witnesses forward in group panels --
9 actually, we won't do that here. We'll bring
10 you up to a microphone one at a time.

11 Those who wish to speak, please
12 make sure you fill out witness slips that are at
13 the back table where you walked in so we have
14 your name and the organization you represent.

15 I would also ask that those that
16 are going to testify take the time now to come
17 down to the front row so you're available when
18 your name is called.

19 If you have written testimony
20 prepared, we would ask that you submit that
21 testimony to us and just briefly summarize it in
22 your oral presentation.

23 After the scheduled witnesses,
24 anyone else wishing to speak may do so. Every
25 witness needs to fill out a slip stating their

1 intention to provide testimony for the record.
2 If you have not done so, again, please return to
3 the sign-in table where you first came in and
4 make our staff aware of your wish. Our
5 intention is to allow everyone an opportunity to
6 participate.

7 Now we'll hear from one or two
8 people on the Panel before we begin. Let's
9 start with representative Jack Franks.

10 MR. FRANKS: Thank you, Lou. I want
11 to thank everyone for being here today on a
12 rainy Saturday morning.

13 I believe this is our first
14 hearing state-wide on redistricting, and I'm
15 pleased to see such a good turnout.

16 I want to thank, first of all,
17 Marengo High School for allowing us to use this.
18 I also want to thank Leader Lang and Leader
19 Mautino for being here, as well as Dave Winters
20 and of course my compatriot Mike Tryon. We're
21 really looking forward to hearing what you have
22 to say.

23 McHenry County, as you know, has
24 grown significantly in the last decade, and I'm
25 hoping that with these hearings we are able to

1 continue to have the type of representation in
2 Springfield with the type of districts that we
3 have.

4 We have two complete House
5 districts in McHenry County with one full Senate
6 district. We've grown about 45,000 people I
7 think. So we're really anxious to hear what you
8 have to say to make sure that we remain compact
9 and contiguous and make sense for the hearing.
10 Thank you.

11 MR. LANG: Representative Mike
12 Tryon.

13 MR. TRYON: Thank you for coming.
14 I'd like to also thank the Committee for their
15 efforts and time here today.

16 What a beautiful high school. I
17 have to say this is my first time in Marengo
18 High School. It's awesome. And I noticed it
19 just happened to be on Franks Road. I kind of
20 was wondering if that was significant that this
21 might be the new center of the 63rd District.

22 MR. FRANKS: We'll see what they
23 have to say about that.

24 MR. TRYON: This is a significant
25 undertaking that we are about to embark upon.

1 We in McHenry County I think have
2 been fortunate to have two House districts that
3 have been just inside the boundaries of McHenry
4 County.

5 We feel that with the growth in
6 the population, the 308,000, we're hoping that
7 we will have three House district seats that are
8 substantially, if not located, within McHenry
9 County.

10 That has afforded us as
11 Republicans and Democrats to work together. And
12 when it comes to issues in McHenry County, we
13 have done our best to try to put the politics
14 aside and do what was right, and that's because
15 we're not split up into a bunch of different
16 districts.

17 We ask today that the Committee
18 consider political boundaries such as county
19 boundaries and city boundaries and political
20 divisions because this map really isn't about
21 the number of Republicans and Democrats or
22 Independents, it's about equal and fair
23 representation.

24 I think that it's important that
25 the architects and drafters of the map keep that

1 in mind, that people's communities should not be
2 divided, if it can so be avoided, so that we can
3 have that type of recommendation.

4 I also think it's important
5 because we are not going to see a map that
6 before we vote on a map, that we have the
7 ability to see it, ask questions about it, and
8 understand the data that was used to draft the
9 map.

10 I hope that that will be
11 something that we'll have a good two or three
12 week period to do before the end of session so
13 that there can be adequate public comment.

14 Also, I think it's important to
15 know that the Illinois Voting Rights Act, we
16 would need to know how that would be implemented
17 in this map. Certainly we're seeing our
18 communities grow in diversity, and that needs to
19 be accommodated as well.

20 I would like to thank the
21 Democrat majority for making this a bipartisan
22 committee, bipartisan effort. This is the first
23 time in fifty-five years that one political
24 party has had the House, the Senate, and the
25 Governor's mansion at the time that we're

1 drawing the new map for the Illinois General
2 Assembly.

3 So with all of those concerns
4 that we would have in McHenry County and
5 communities across Illinois, I still believe
6 strongly in the process as long as the process
7 can accommodate adequate public input and
8 transparency.

9 I think anyone here today who has
10 a concern about their community being whole,
11 about the way that the county would be divided
12 or the way that their area would be divided,
13 whether it's based on diversity or whether it's
14 based on socioeconomics or whether it's based on
15 political boundaries, needs to make that point
16 today at this hearing.

17 So, once again, I'd like to thank
18 the Committee, and it's a pleasure to be here.

19 MR. LANG: Thank you,
20 Representative.

21 Once again, if you're going to
22 testify make sure you fill out a witness slip,
23 and I'd like all the witnesses to come down to
24 the front row if you would like to do that.

25 So at this point we're going to

1 proceed with the slide-show presentation. It
2 will be brief, and then we'll commence with the
3 witnesses.

4 MR. FREY: Good morning, everyone.
5 My name is Dan Frey. I'm an employee of the
6 Illinois General Assembly, and I'm here just to
7 give a brief overview of the state's
8 redistricting procedure.

9 I'll briefly discuss the
10 procedures and background of redistricting and
11 information on the Voting Rights Act. I will
12 also be going over our new state redistricting
13 guidelines just signed into law. Finally, we
14 will be looking at the results of the 2010
15 Census and what those results say about the
16 McHenry County area.

17 Redistricting is the process that
18 ensures all Illinois residents are afforded
19 equal representation in the state legislature
20 and federal congress, as guaranteed by the
21 United States constitution.

22 The U.S. Supreme Court held a
23 series of rulings in the 1960s that
24 congressional and state legislative districts in
25 each state must be of equal population

1 establishing the principle of one person one
2 vote.

3 As a result, states redraw their
4 congressional and state districts every ten
5 years to reflect changes in population as shown
6 by the Census.

7 The timeline for redrawing the
8 legislative maps are based on the Illinois
9 constitution.

10 On December 21st data collected
11 by the 2010 Census was delivered to the
12 president. The full block-by-block Census
13 profile of Illinois which will be used in the
14 redistricting process was released in February.

15 The Illinois state legislature
16 has the initial responsibility of passing the
17 new congressional and state maps. Both the
18 State House and State Senate must pass a plan
19 with majority votes. The plan must then be
20 signed by the governor.

21 If a new map does not go into
22 effect by the constitutional deadline of
23 June 30th, responsibility for creating a new map
24 passes from the legislature and governor to a
25 legislative redistricting commission.

1 The commission shall consist of
2 eight members, with no more than four from the
3 same political party.

4 A majority vote of five or more
5 Commission members will constitute final
6 approval of a new map.

7 However, if the Commission does
8 not agree to a map by September 1st, the
9 Illinois Supreme Court will submit two names,
10 one from each party, to the Illinois Secretary
11 of State who will then choose one name at random
12 to serve as the ninth member of the Commission.
13 Five of the nine members of the Commission must
14 agree to a plan no later than October 5th.

15 In order to understand how the
16 Census data is used to draw new districts, we
17 must look at legal guiding principles.

18 First among these is equal
19 population. State law mirrors the federal
20 one-person-one-vote standard and mandates
21 congressional and state districts to contain
22 substantially equal population. As a result of
23 the 2010 Census, the target population of each
24 House district is 108,734 people, while ideal
25 population for a Senate district is 217,468

1 people.

2 Federal and state law also
3 requires that all districts be contiguous, which
4 means that all parts of a district must be next
5 to each other, unless connected by water.

6 Annexations and unincorporated
7 areas in municipalities and counties sometimes
8 mean communities are discontinuous. However,
9 congressional and state districts must be
10 adjacent or connected at all points.

11 A more difficult requirement to
12 define is compactness. There are at least
13 thirty different scientific ways to measure how
14 compact a district is, but no statute or court
15 precedent identifies standard criteria of
16 compactness.

17 In theory, compactness focuses on
18 the shape of a district's boundaries, how spread
19 out a district is from a central core, or where
20 the district's population center of gravity is.

21 In practice, compactness is
22 hindered by geography and on-the-ground
23 realities. So often the interpretation of
24 compactness involves more than a visual test.

25 Illinois is one of fourteen

1 states that nest two of its House districts,
2 also called Representative districts, inside one
3 of its Senate districts, also called Legislative
4 districts.

5 Map makers will also look, where
6 possible, to follow existing political and
7 geographical boundaries in ways that maximize a
8 community's opportunity to have its interests
9 represented.

10 As you know, however, county,
11 municipality, township, and natural geographic
12 boundaries are not always compact and
13 contiguous.

14 By studying Census data and
15 holding public hearings like this to listen to
16 the thoughts of residents across the state,
17 lawmakers look to identify what are known as
18 communities of interest.

19 A community of interest is a
20 group of people concentrated in a geographic
21 area where socially, culturally, ethnically,
22 economically, religiously, or otherwise alike,
23 and can be joined in a district to most
24 effectively have their voices heard. The
25 factors contributing to any particular community

1 of interest will vary throughout the state.

2 Federal law requires
3 redistricting plans to represent minority
4 representation. The principles of the federal
5 Voting Rights Act are in place to prevent the
6 reduction of opportunities for minority
7 populations to participate equally in the
8 electoral process. However, districts cannot be
9 drawn solely on the basis of race.

10 Earlier this year Governor Quinn
11 signed legislation to protect representation of
12 racial and language minority groups.

13 Senate Bill 3976, now known as
14 Public Act 96-1541, helps to prevent minority
15 fracturing or dividing a concentration of
16 minorities among two or more districts, by
17 requiring map makers to consider creating
18 crossover districts, coalition districts, or
19 influence districts.

20 A crossover district is one in
21 which large minority groups may elect the
22 candidate of its choice with help from voters of
23 the majority group.

24 A coalition district brings
25 multiple racial or language minority groups

1 together to elect a candidate of their choice.

2 An influence district allows a
3 group to influence an election outcome without
4 being the majority population in a district.

5 These new state law requirements
6 come into play only after compliance with
7 federal law and U.S. and state constitutional
8 requirements on redistricting.

9 In addition, the law ensures
10 transparency by requiring public hearings across
11 the state, one of which we are having here right
12 now.

13 The hearings will provide a space
14 for residents to share their thoughts on the
15 redistricting process, a key component to
16 creating a map that best represents the people
17 of Illinois.

18 At the end of the presentation,
19 we will display an e-mail address on the screen,
20 Representative Lang already provided, where you
21 can submit your ideas. The Committee is also
22 accepting written testimony today.

23 Now that we've covered the
24 redistricting process, we're going to take a
25 look at the Census data that we will be using to

1 draw up the new districts.

2 All of the maps you are going to
3 see are drawn by using Census Blocks, which is
4 the smallest level of geography the Census
5 Bureau uses to report population data.

6 As of the 2010 Census, the total
7 population of the state of Illinois is
8 12,830,632 as compared to 2000's total
9 population of 12,419,293, an increase of about
10 410,000.

11 Communities with the largest
12 population by percentage increase since 2000 are
13 Boone, Grundy, Kane, Kendall, and Will Counties.

14 Demographically speaking, a lot
15 of change happened over the past decade. The
16 white population has risen statewide by 0.6
17 percent to 8,167,753.

18 Illinois' African-American
19 population has fallen statewide by 0.6 percent
20 to 1,832,924.

21 Illinois' Hispanic population
22 though has risen statewide by 32.5 percent to a
23 total of 2,027,578.

24 And finally the state's Asian
25 population has also risen by 38.6 percent to

1 580,586.

2 Now we are going to look at
3 McHenry County area, which includes McHenry,
4 Woodstock, Crystal Lake, Algonquin, Cary, and
5 other municipalities.

6 This area is primarily located in
7 McHenry County, though parts of Huntley and
8 Algonquin branch into Kane County.

9 This area makes up Senate
10 Districts 26 and 22 and Representative Districts
11 52, 63, and 64.

12 In 2000 the area's total
13 population was 193,156. In the last ten years,
14 the area's population has increased to 233,968.

15 This is a map of this area's
16 African-American population. The 2010 Census
17 reports that the African-American population of
18 the area is 2,861.

19 The 2010 Census reported that the
20 Hispanic population is 20,026 and is the area's
21 largest minority population.

22 And, finally, here is a map of
23 the area's Asian population. In the last ten
24 years it has increased to 8,200, with the
25 majority of that number concentrated south of

1 McHenry in Huntley and Algonquin.

2 Also, we have a map of the public
3 hearing area. This is the 2000 total
4 population. Here it's changed in the past ten
5 years. Here's the area's African-American
6 population, Hispanic population, and Asian
7 population.

8 Well, thank you very much for
9 listening to my presentation and coming out to
10 share your thoughts today. The website there is
11 where you can learn more about the process and
12 an e-mail address where you can submit your
13 ideas and thoughts. Thank you so much.

14 MR. LANG: Thank you for the
15 presentation.

16 Again, if you wish to testify,
17 make sure you fill out your witness slips. We
18 have been joined by representative Tim Schmitz.
19 Thank you, Representative, for your attendance
20 today.

21 We will now proceed with the
22 first witness who is Brian Sager, Mayor of the
23 City of Woodstock.

24 AUDIENCE MEMBER: I didn't sign up
25 to testify.

1 MR. LANG: Oh, you didn't? I'm
2 sorry. Then we'll move on to the League of
3 Women Voters.

4 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Good morning. My
5 name is Judy Szilak and I am a member of the --

6 MR. LANG: Excuse me. For the
7 record and for the Court Reporter, will all
8 witnesses when you state your name and your
9 organization spell your name for the Court
10 Reporter. Thank you.

11 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Okay. My name is
12 Judy Szilak, and the last name is S-Z-I-L-A-K.
13 I'm President of the League of Women Voters of
14 McHenry County.

15 Thank you for this opportunity to
16 share some thoughts with you about the League of
17 Women Voters and the 2011 redistricting process
18 of the Illinois General Assembly.

19 As you know, redistricting is an
20 important and vital democratic process and one
21 which should not be taken lightly.

22 The League of Women Voters is a
23 nonpartisan political organization that
24 encourages informed and active participation in
25 government, works to increase understanding of

1 major public policy issues and influences public
2 policy through education and advocacy. We
3 neither support nor oppose any political party
4 or candidate for public office.

5 The League of Women Voters of
6 Illinois has for many years promoted a set of
7 redistricting principles as well as a process
8 that is timely and orderly and includes the
9 following elements: A formal announced
10 timetable; the availability of information and
11 related data to all who wish to participate in
12 the process; ample opportunities for expert
13 testimony, public reaction, and input into the
14 proposed maps; compromise among partisan
15 representatives; avoids partisan stalemate;
16 produces maps which offer voters a choice of
17 candidates in elections.

18 The public should be allowed to
19 see and comment on any new maps that are drawn
20 by the Illinois General Assembly at least two
21 weeks before they are voted on by the Senate and
22 House during this session of the General
23 Assembly.

24 Additionally, the General
25 Assembly should give us as much rationale as

1 possible when describing the decision that
2 resulted in the final districts drawn.

3 Maps should not intentionally or
4 unnecessarily split communities of interest.
5 All too frequently voters do not have a clear
6 sense of who represents them in the General
7 Assembly.

8 Communities frequently have split
9 unnecessarily into multiple legislative or
10 congressional districts.

11 If the map of a district is drawn
12 rationally, keeping communities and
13 municipalities together, elected officials and
14 their constituents can build accountable,
15 productive, working relationships.

16 The League of Women Voters
17 believes that a fair and open redistricting
18 process is one that ensures citizen
19 participation and results in the best public
20 policy for the residents of Illinois.

21 Citizen participation is key to
22 maintaining and strengthening democracy in our
23 state. Thank you.

24 MR. LANG: Excuse me. I don't have
25 a question. I'd just like to ask you to make

1 that written statement a part of our record. Do
2 we have that?

3 AUDIENCE MEMBER: I will.

4 MR. LANG: Thank you.

5 Next witness will be Martin
6 Sobczak from Woodstock. All right. Then the
7 next witness would be Maggie Rivera from the
8 League of Latin-American Citizens.

9 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Good morning to
10 everyone. My name is Maggie Rivera, and I am a
11 member of the League of United --

12 MR. LANG: Would you spell your name
13 for the record.

14 AUDIENCE MEMBER: M-A-G-G-I-E
15 R-I-V-E-R-A.

16 MR. LANG: Thank you.

17 AUDIENCE MEMBER: I am the National
18 Midwest VP and member of LULAC McHenry County
19 Council 5260.

20 The League of United
21 Latin-American Citizens is the oldest and
22 largest Latino organization in the country. Our
23 mission is to advance the economic condition,
24 educational attainment, political influence,
25 health and civil rights of the Hispanic

1 population of the United States and Puerto Rico.

2 LULAC is part of the Illinois
3 Latino Agenda, a forty-nine member coalition of
4 Latino nonprofit organizations that is working
5 together to protect the voting rights of Latino
6 residents and to increase their ability to elect
7 candidates of their choice through the
8 development of new legislative boundaries across
9 the state.

10 The dramatic Latino population
11 growth must be reflected in the drawing of new
12 legislative district boundaries that allows for
13 districts that properly represent the Latino
14 community.

15 Even if the growth does not allow
16 for majority Latino districts, then the
17 districts must allow for greater influence by
18 Latino voters and not split the population into
19 smaller groupings.

20 Minority voting rights are
21 protected under the U.S. Voting Rights Act of
22 1965. And the Illinois Voters Registration Act
23 of 2011 calls for the protection of minority
24 communities by the creation of influence,
25 coalition, and crossover districts.

1 As we just recently heard the
2 statistics in McHenry County, we are above
3 20,000 population of Hispanics and yet we don't
4 have any voice at the local or county level.

5 So today as I stand here and
6 deliver this statement, I know that we have
7 other sister organizations that feel the same
8 way as we do.

9 Lastly, in closing I just want to
10 state that we will be keeping watch on the
11 redistricting process and would like an
12 opportunity to comment on the maps being
13 considered before they are voted on and would
14 suggest public hearings on the new maps at least
15 two weeks before the vote.

16 Thank you for the opportunity to
17 testify, and we are interested in continuing our
18 discussion and offer further comment as the
19 redistricting process continues. Thank you.

20 MR. LANG: Thank you very much. And
21 if you could provide your written statement to
22 the table where you checked in, we would
23 appreciate it. Thank you.

24 Next witness is Charlie Worboys
25 from AARP. Is Charlie here? Rosemary Kurtz?

1 Rosemary was one of the state representatives.

2 It's good to see you again.

3 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Thank you very
4 much, Representative Lang. It's great to see
5 all the rest of you coming from so far away,
6 such as Representative Mautino and Winters and
7 the man from, I can't remember, St. Charles.

8 MR. LANG: Excuse me, Rosemary.
9 We've had a request from the Court Reporter that
10 you and all other witnesses speak a little
11 louder.

12 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Yes. I'm Rosemary
13 Kurtz, former state representative. My name is
14 spelled K-U-R-T-Z.

15 I'm looking around for some kind
16 of evidence that the two parties have produced
17 as far as their idea of a good map in
18 redistricting, but I don't see anything.

19 The reason I'm so concentrated on
20 that point is that I worked a year ago with the
21 Fair Map coalition, and that was a group of
22 about seven well-known, well-respected
23 organizations, the Illinois Farm Bureau, the
24 Illinois Chamber of Commerce, the Illinois
25 League of Women Voters, the Better Government

1 Association, and several others.

2 We did not meet the deadline with
3 our petition drive to get the Fair Map on the
4 ballot last November. So we're back in the
5 process of two maps being drawn by
6 representatives of the two parties behind closed
7 doors.

8 The decision of which map we will
9 have for the next ten years is made by a drawing
10 from a hat. When that ninth person is selected,
11 he or she draws from a hat. No other state does
12 its redistricting like the Illinois legislature.

13 From the publicity and
14 information last year of how a fair map would be
15 drawn by nonelected members of the public, it
16 appears that the legislature has absorbed
17 something of our fair map process, mainly having
18 these meetings right now and giving the public
19 hope that you will incorporate some of the
20 public's advice into the map soon to be adopted
21 for the next ten years.

22 To me, it's probably going to
23 take ten years for the coalition, Fair Map
24 coalition, to educate the public enough to
25 really want to come out and sign that petition

1 and get it on the ballot.

2 So I would say this is a campaign
3 issue for any candidates that aren't already
4 elected to get in there and push for the public,
5 the selection of people from the public itself,
6 and not from separate parties who are elected.
7 And they would be using a computer program like
8 the State of Iowa for instance. Thank you very
9 much.

10 MR. LANG: Thank you, Rosemary.
11 Will you provide a copy of your written
12 statement to the folks at the back table. Thank
13 you very much.

14 The next witness is Ken Koehler
15 who is the McHenry County Board Chief.

16 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Good morning. I
17 want to thank the Committee for allowing us to
18 have the opportunity to speak today.

19 I'm Ken Koehler, K-O-E-H-L-E-R,
20 the County Board Chairman for McHenry County,
21 but I am speaking on behalf of myself today, not
22 the County Board.

23 I'm going to ask mostly
24 questions. I'm sure you're not going to answer
25 them today, but I hope that through this process

1 you will be doing that.

2 McHenry County is taking the
3 challenge of redistricting with our county board
4 maps to be very transparent in the process. And
5 I as a citizen of the state of Illinois expect
6 us to have that same type of transparency as you
7 go through this process.

8 So my questions are going to be
9 this: Will this Committee have hearings on
10 proposed maps and when will they have those
11 done?

12 Will this Committee disclose the
13 data supporting any proposed maps?

14 Will the Committee provide ample
15 time, at least two weeks, for groups to analyze
16 and comment on the proposed maps? And I'm led
17 to believe that the Senate has already said that
18 they're going to do that, so I hope that you
19 will do that as well.

20 If the Committee discloses a
21 proposed map prior to taking the vote, how will
22 it be made available to the public?

23 Will the Committee establish a
24 set of agreed upon criteria prior to drafting
25 any maps?

1 Will the Committee establish a
2 set of rules governing the Committee?

3 Will all of the proposed hearings
4 be subject matter only?

5 Will transcripts of the hearing
6 be made available to the public? And if so,
7 when?

8 Will the Committee post written
9 statements by witnesses and any maps proposed by
10 witnesses on its website?

11 Will the Committee be the ones
12 that are drawing up this map?

13 Lastly, McHenry County has just
14 had, like everybody else, the Census taken. We
15 were a little bit less than what we had
16 anticipated but we are still over 300,000,
17 approximately 309,000.

18 We are now the sixth largest
19 county in the state of Illinois. I would hope
20 that our representation would be where we would
21 have at least 100 to 103 people being
22 represented in each one of these districts, and
23 they would be as contiguous and they can to the
24 Board of McHenry County.

25 So I thank you for the

1 opportunity to speak to you today, and I hope
2 you take all these questions seriously. Thank
3 you.

4 MR. LANG: Thank you, sir. And if
5 you wish, we would appreciate it if you could
6 provide a copy of your statement at the table in
7 the back.

8 Next witness is Janet Silosky.

9 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Good morning. My
10 name is Janet Silosky. That's S-I-L-O-S-K-Y.
11 I'm a precinct committeeman from Plainfield
12 Township in --

13 (A recess was taken due to
14 technical difficulties.)

15 AUDIENCE MEMBER: My name is Janet
16 Silosky, S-I-L-O-S-K-Y. I'm the precinct
17 committeeman for the 28th Precinct in Plainfield
18 Township. I'm a Republican, though that is not
19 necessarily an important matter at this meeting
20 here.

21 One thing I wanted to say, and
22 this is really of everybody but I'm obviously
23 speaking in this direction, a public office is a
24 public trust, and we want that from our
25 officials, and we want it in the redistricting

1 practice as well.

2 We want to make sure that as a
3 constituent, as a citizen in the state of
4 Illinois, whether in McHenry County or Will
5 County, that we have it, that we have our
6 districts drawn appropriately.

7 I simply, it's not so much a
8 question as a statement as to how we are going
9 to get this done in an equitable fashion.

10 I'm going to make a statement on
11 this that the Democrats are in charge of the
12 whole process, and the gerrymandering that goes
13 on will not necessarily provide a map that is
14 contiguous, that is as it should be or where it
15 takes care of particular groups of people and
16 represents them as they should be.

17 I understand and I think it's a
18 wonderful thing that we're all able to come here
19 today and you're all here to listen to us, but I
20 want to know exactly what kind of input, and I
21 don't mean to say this with any disrespect, but
22 what difference does it make, what difference is
23 our input going to have on this.

24 Michael Madigan and the Democrats
25 said it's already decided, they know what

1 they're going to do. For those of us who are
2 not Democrats, this is going to be set up the
3 way it is.

4 And I will tell you this: I've
5 lived in this state for half a century and
6 nothing changes and nothing has changed because
7 it's Democrats have been in control since I was
8 knee high to a grasshopper. And if you think
9 that I am not upset about what we're going to
10 see happen, you've got another thing coming.

11 There are a lot of people that
12 are very angry and we're not going to know.
13 Because the Democrats know, they probably,
14 they've got it, I can't say for sure, but I can
15 guarantee this, that those that are going to be
16 running that know what districts they're going
17 to be running for because they already have
18 information, go ahead and start filling their
19 coffers now while people from the Republican
20 party won't know whether they should start
21 filling their coffers who are running for
22 candidacy because they don't even know what
23 district they're going to be in, whether they're
24 going to run for state senator or representative
25 or even if they're going to make a congressional

1 run.

2 So it's really unfairly balanced.

3 And I cannot see, though how nicely this is all
4 set up for us to be here and so we're supposed
5 to have this input, if it's going to make any
6 difference whatsoever.

7 I am grateful for the opportunity
8 to have spoken. And I would like to hear some
9 input from you, gentlemen and gentleladies.

10 Thank you.

11 MR. LANG: Next witness is Mary
12 Donner from McHenry County Board.

13 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Mary Donner,
14 D-O-N-N-E-R. I actually live in the Crystal
15 Lake area. I am the vice chair for the Planning
16 & Development Committee for McHenry County.
17 Tina Hill, who is the chairman, couldn't be here
18 today but she asked me to read a statement to
19 you. I can then forward it to you in an e-mail.

20 It's more to tell you about what
21 McHenry County does. Of course Jack Franks and
22 Mike Tryon already know how things work, but for
23 the rest of you we've done a really I think
24 gentleman's job of making sure that we have a
25 presence and a focus, and we want you to make

1 sure that you take that into consideration as
2 well as your work as redistricting.

3 McHenry County developed the 2030
4 plan with the population growth in mind. And
5 with an eighteen percent growth over the last
6 ten years, I think we were well ahead of that.

7 The plan assumes a two percent
8 growth rate through the year 2030 which will
9 give McHenry County a projected population of
10 495,000 people.

11 The plan was designed to
12 accommodate the population while also preserving
13 and protecting our natural resources, providing
14 opportunities for needing economic growth, and
15 most importantly, expecting and bolstering our
16 agriculturally-based heritage.

17 To achieve these goals, the plan
18 calls for compact, contiguous development to
19 procure municipalities and build villages and
20 cities.

21 The plan encourages a land-first
22 approach to development wherein the physical and
23 ecological features of the land are taken into
24 consideration when contemplating development.

25 The county's conservation subdivision ordinance

1 is the first step towards achieving those goals.

2 So it obviously shows that in
3 those areas where we have population, we expect
4 it to grow even more. And Jack has a lot
5 working for him in his area as well. Thank you.

6 MR. LANG: Thank you very much.

7 Next witness Steve Polep. Please state your
8 name and spell your last name.

9 AUDIENCE MEMBER: My name is Steve
10 Polep, P-O-L-E-P, talking as a citizen.

11 I happen to live right on the
12 edge of one district and am now represented by a
13 Lake County representative. I do all of my
14 business, everything else, in Crystal Lake,
15 which is in Mr. Tryon's district.

16 I feel I'm unrepresented because
17 the people that represent me represent a
18 different population than I'm in. And I think
19 that Cary and Crystal Lake should be in the same
20 district. Thank you.

21 MR. LANG: Thank you very much.

22 Next witness is Ken Goodman.

23 AUDIENCE MEMBER: My name is Ken
24 Goodman, G-O-O-D-M-A-N. I hope my toddler is
25 not too disruptive as I give my speech here.

1 I'm a resident of Sycamore,
2 Illinois, and I'm a teacher at Sycamore High
3 School, although I'm also speaking as a private
4 citizen.

5 We don't have a hearing in the
6 DeKalb County area, so this is about the closest
7 one for me. It's less than half an hour drive.

8 I'd like to echo a similar
9 sentiment to the gentleman who just spoke
10 regarding the congressional districts.

11 In the past decade, Sycamore has
12 grown primarily to the north, and as a result of
13 that about a quarter to a fifth of the town is
14 now represented by Dominic Manzullo. And
15 unfortunately I don't know the numbers, I didn't
16 look them up. Whereas, the rest of the city is
17 represented by Randy Hultgren.

18 I feel that the whole city should
19 be under one congressional representative.
20 Especially because our growth pattern sort of
21 echoes Kane County and the other areas that
22 Representative Hultgren is covering.

23 So I would really like to see
24 when the boundaries are redrawn for the
25 congressional districts, that the City of

1 sycamore be all included with the rest, the
2 entire city be under one district.

3 I think that's all I have to say.
4 Thank you very much.

5 MR. LANG: Thank you. Next witness
6 is Jim Carlin.

7 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Good morning,
8 Representatives, and thank you for coming, and
9 thank you everybody in the audience for braving
10 the elements to come out today.

11 My name is Jim Carlin,
12 C-A-R-L-I-N. I currently live and have lived in
13 Algonquin for the last three years where I am
14 also a committeeman for District 64.

15 Prior to living in Algonquin, I
16 lived in Sun City for thirty years where I was
17 the head of their civics committee as well as
18 the president of their political discussion. So
19 I've had a lot of, if you will, interaction with
20 our local representatives, including Tim, Mike,
21 as well as Pam and Chris.

22 I'm also a member of the Huntley
23 Area Tea Party where I'm on the leadership
24 committee. We don't have any titles here, all
25 for one and one for all. We focus on education

1 and do not currently nor do we intend to endorse
2 political candidates.

3 I'd like to discuss the area that
4 I call my area, which includes Huntley, Lake In
5 The Hills, and parts of Algonquin that are west
6 of Randall Road.

7 We've had enormous growth. We
8 just heard some numbers for McHenry County, but
9 we in particular have had enormous growth.

10 During that time we've been
11 fortunate to have Mike Tryon either on the
12 County Board as the chair or as our
13 representative, and he has just done outstanding
14 work in helping us in particular four years ago
15 retrieving \$14 million from the state for our
16 school district, which was huge, it was a huge
17 fight because everybody was against us.

18 So he has worked hard for us,
19 just as Jack Franks has also fought hard for the
20 contiguous area of Woodstock. We urge you to
21 consider that the people in our area would
22 really like to have continued representation
23 from Mike and I'm sure the Woodstock folks for
24 Jack.

25 There's one other area I would

1 like to discuss that came to mind as the
2 presentation was being made. I had never heard
3 about communities of interest or influence
4 districts before.

5 But having been so active in Sun
6 City, if you're not familiar with it, Sun City
7 is divided between representation. They have
8 two senators, Chris Lauzen and Pam Althoff, and
9 they have two representatives, Tim and Mike, all
10 of them who do good work for us.

11 But as a community of interest, I
12 would like to urge that they have a single
13 representative and a single senator. It would
14 make it so much easier when we're having events,
15 when we need help, not that anybody is not doing
16 a good job, but it would seem to me in deference
17 to an earlier speaker that it would be an
18 advantage for us if the area currently held by
19 our Representative Tryon, whom I have not talked
20 to because I just came up with this, that
21 includes Terry, could be traded for the other
22 half of Sun City. I apologize for that.

23 So I haven't talked to Mike about
24 this, I don't know how he feels, I don't know
25 how Pam feels. I did get the point that we have

1 to embed the congressional district into the
2 senatorial district. That's my input.

3 By the way, we've had a lull in the
4 growth. But once we get a safe government and
5 federal government that decides to encourage
6 growth in industry and jobs, we're going to take
7 off again.

8 The work that Jack and Mike and
9 Representative Manzullo have done to help us
10 expand Route 47, put an interface between Randall
11 Road and 47, we're going to be booming once we get
12 the right direction, this is the taxes and all
13 that.

14 So I urge you to consider all that.
15 We've had the growth. Mike really knows our area.
16 Pam really knows our area. I urge you to consider
17 what I'm suggesting. Thank you.

18 MR. LANG: Thank you very much.

19 That completes the witness slips
20 that I have. Is there anyone else that is here
21 that wishes to testify that has not done so?

22 Mr. Skinner, please, if you're
23 going to testify we'll need to have a witness
24 slip from you, but you can speak first.

25 AUDIENCE MEMBER: My name is Cal

1 Skinner, C-A-L S-K-I-N-N-E-R, 275 Meridian
2 Street, Crystal Lake, Illinois.

3 I noticed that the map that Mike
4 Tryon's district is going to emulate my district
5 in the '70s. You're going to put the eastern
6 side of Carpentersville, a part of
7 Carpentersville that was built for track housing
8 after World War II, it was so economically built
9 that they used 55-gallon drums for the sewers.
10 You can imagine this is not, I mean this is
11 affordable housing for Kane County.

12 Now, to put that in with Crystal
13 Lake and in Huntley and with Cary, by going
14 through Barrington Hills does not create a
15 community of interest.

16 You couldn't find much more
17 different parts of suburbs than the east side of
18 the river in Carpentersville and southeastern
19 McHenry County.

20 Southeastern McHenry County is a
21 growth tip of the state and has been for four
22 decades.

23 The east side of Carpentersville
24 is a deteriorating community. The only
25 renovation that's going on is being done by Jack

1 Roeser who has bought a series of townhouses, a
2 number of townhouses, over a hundred, on the, I
3 can't remember the route, but in the
4 southeastern part of that area that would be in
5 Mike's district.

6 So a commonality of interest, as
7 one of your guidelines, occurred too fast for
8 the 64th District.

9 I would echo Chairman Koehler's
10 comments with regard to the number of people
11 that are in McHenry County. We have almost
12 enough for three legislative districts. Surely
13 two of them should still be fully within McHenry
14 County. Obviously one has to go out someplace.

15 The gentleman who lives in
16 Representative Beaubien's district I think
17 accurately reflects the differences demographics
18 on the eastern side of McHenry County with the
19 demographics that are in Barrington Township and
20 in the western part of Lake County. There's
21 some commonality but not a lot of commonality.

22 Thank you very much for coming to
23 this really hard to find location. It took me
24 three tries to find the high school. I know
25 that one state representative went all the way

1 through Marengo and back to find this place.

2 Perhaps next time you have a hearing, Mr. Lang,
3 you could send out a map.

4 MR. LANG: Mapquest does wonders.

5 We have an additional witness,
6 Marymargaret Maule.

7 AUDIENCE MEMBER: My name is
8 Marymargaret Maule. Marymargaret is one word
9 and Maule is M-A-U-L-E.

10 I'm here speaking on behalf of
11 the Illinois Small Business Development Center
12 at McHenry County College which I am the
13 director and coordinator of.

14 I have a very strong working
15 relationship with the stakeholders that
16 represent my constituency.

17 The challenge is I have a very
18 strong relationship with Representative Franks,
19 Representative Tryon, and Senator Althoff and
20 both of our congressional representatives.

21 I have less so with
22 Representative Beaubien and Senator Duffy. I
23 have very slim portion of their constituency in
24 the areas that I work.

25 It makes it a challenge when I'm

1 trying to keep them aware of what's going on.
2 They are our stakeholders and therefore a part
3 of my funding challenges, and it's very
4 difficult to keep them apprised of what's going
5 on and how it can influence their decisions
6 because statistically I have such a small
7 portion of their representative district.

8 Likewise, when I'm having any
9 kind of open forum on the small business
10 community, they're less inclined to come and
11 participate for the same reason.

12 Our districts are designed along
13 the community college districts, and so I would
14 just like to say if you could keep that in mind.
15 It's much easier for us who are working in the
16 business community through a state-based
17 organization if we can have some alignment along
18 with the district that we're drawing from.

19 Thank you.

20 MR. LANG: Thank you very much.

21 Is there any additional
22 testimony? Step forward, sir. Please state
23 your name and spell your last. And please make
24 sure you provide a witness slip to the table in
25 back after your testimony.

1 AUDIENCE MEMBER: I'm Bill Jordan,
2 J-O-R-D-A-N, from Woodstock. I just would like
3 to comment briefly picking up on two of the
4 previous comments.

5 The first was of the woman who
6 expressed a certain skepticism about this whole
7 process, the extent to which the testimony here
8 and so forth will actually be taken into
9 account.

10 My only sense is the process is
11 hopelessly complicated in a political sense.
12 And that's not casting dispersion on any of us
13 since we are all members of the human species.

14 The second was an earlier comment
15 mentioned in passing that Iowa has a somewhat
16 different system involving the use of computers.

17 I'd like to raise the question of
18 whether, we got a choice here, we move toward a
19 more democratic process, more participatory,
20 such as represented by this meeting this
21 morning, might be a move in exactly the wrong
22 direction.

23 What I mean by that is we can
24 look for opportunities where governance or
25 functions of government can be automated, and

1 that may transcend human meddling.

2 There are precedents in this of
3 political systems. The ancient Greeks had a
4 system of random selection in the creation of
5 committees that made fundamental decisions. So
6 did the Venetians.

7 We now have computers. And it
8 seems to me that we should look for ways, as I
9 guess the State of Iowa has done, to have this
10 process handled by a computer and an algorithm
11 could be written into our constitution.

12 MR. LANG: Thank you for your
13 comments. Is there any additional comments?
14 Step forward, sir.

15 AUDIENCE MEMBER: I really don't
16 have anything to say right now, except that I
17 have some existing district maps,
18 representatives and also congressional, and I'd
19 like to give them to the Honorable Mr. Tryon.

20 MR. LANG: You may provide any
21 documents you wish to any member of the
22 committee, and they will be made part of the
23 record, sir.

24 AUDIENCE MEMBER: May I direct it to
25 one of your Committee members?

1 MR. LANG: Someone will come to you.
2 This gentleman here, right over here. Mr. Wogan
3 will take that from you and we'll make it part
4 of our record.

5 Can you state your name, sir, for
6 the record.

7 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Raymond J. Scheff,
8 Fox River Grove.

9 MR. LANG: Please spell your last
10 name.

11 AUDIENCE MEMBER: S-C-H-E-F-F.

12 MR. LANG: Thank you very much, sir.

13 AUDIENCE MEMBER: This is for the
14 personal use of Mr. Tryon who was very cordial
15 in giving me a reply to one of my letters.

16 MR. LANG: All right. So this is
17 not for the Committee's use in the redistricting
18 process?

19 AUDIENCE MEMBER: It's up to
20 Mr. Tryon.

21 MR. LANG: Thank you, sir.

22 AUDIENCE MEMBER: You're welcome.

23 MR. LANG: Is there anyone else who
24 wishes to testify? Please step forward. State
25 your name and spell your last name.

1 AUDIENCE MEMBER: My name is Kathy
2 Berger Schmitt, official is Schmitt,
3 S-C-H-M-I-T-T. I am a County Board member but I
4 am here to speak just for my own self.

5 I just want to echo the
6 sentiments that Marymargaret Maule spoke of,
7 which is being in that triangular fight out of
8 county represented by Duffy and Beaubien. Were
9 they invited to join us today?

10 Many times in McHenry County we
11 do not see our representatives there. I often
12 feel like I'm in the orphan part of the county
13 when it comes to that. I've felt like that for
14 years. So obviously I'm not the only one. So
15 please try to take those things into
16 consideration.

17 The other parts of the district
18 are more populous. I know that's why it
19 happens. But still, we're there.

20 Then another thing: In my
21 political party activities, I know this is not,
22 this will be a factor, but in Illinois I think
23 there is an overabundance of a disease known as
24 incumbent protection, and it will be a factor.
25 Anyone realistic knows it. But it doesn't have

1 to be a main factor.

2 Some of the other considerations
3 that we the public aren't bringing up I would
4 hope would take a little bit more weight. But
5 in Illinois we have incumbent protection and we
6 have perpetual election sites. So if we could
7 improve both of those, civic life would be ever
8 so much more pleasant. Thank you.

9 MR. LANG: Thank you for your
10 comments. I would like to say for the record
11 that Mr. Beaubien has been quite ill. In fact,
12 he missed all this week's sessions and perhaps
13 the previous ones as well. So our best wishes
14 to Mr. Beaubien.

15 Are there any comments from
16 anyone else in the audience? Last chance. You
17 want another bite at the apple, sir?

18 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Yes. I would just
19 like to say that the honorable Mr. Duffy is a
20 very hard, courageous, and intelligent man. He
21 answers every one of my letters.

22 MR. LANG: Thank you.

23 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Not mine.

24 MR. LANG: That completes our
25 testimony.

1 I want to thank everyone for
2 being here. I'd like to thank this wonderful
3 and beautiful high school for hosting us today.

4 There were a few questions posed,
5 and we're not prepared to answer all of them
6 today. First of all, there were quite a few,
7 but I think rereading part of my initial
8 statement will answer some of the questions
9 about the public's input and the transparency
10 that we hope to have.

11 So we want to hear any testimony
12 that's relevant to the drawing of congressional,
13 legislative, or representative districts. If
14 you have a proposed map, we will take it from
15 you and consider it.

16 If you want to draw your own map
17 but don't have the necessary equipment to do so,
18 we have two public viewing stations, one in
19 Springfield in the 401 Stratton building, open
20 Monday through Friday, and a second workstation
21 on the 7th floor of the Bilandic building at
22 160 North LaSalle in Chicago.

23 You can take your maps, your
24 data, or work with the data in those computers,
25 and create your own maps and provide them to us.

1 You can schedule an appointment
2 to access either public station by calling Area
3 Code (217) 558-3036.

4 You may also submit any comments,
5 proposed maps, or other information to us, this
6 Committee, and the broader Committee that's been
7 traveling around the state, at
8 ilredistricting@gmail.com.

9 All of the testimony at all
10 fifteen hearings will be posted on that website
11 at www.ilhousedems.com/redistricting.

12 Any evidence we receive, be it
13 written, oral, proposed maps, will also be
14 uploaded to our website.

15 So we want to thank you all for
16 being here today. And with that this hearing is
17 in recess to the call of the Chair. Thank you
18 all very much.

19 (Said hearing was concluded.)

20

21

22

23

24

25

1 STATE OF ILLINOIS)

2) SS:

3 COUNTY OF C O O K)

4

5 I, Donna M. Kazaitis, CSR No. 084-003145,
6 has hereunto set her sign and seal on this 25th
7 of April, 2011, saying she is a court reporter
8 doing business in the City of Chicago; that she
9 reported in shorthand said proceedings; and that
10 the foregoing is a true and correct transcript
11 of her shorthand notes so taken.

12

13

14

15

16 DONNA M. KAZAITIS, CSR NO. 084-003145

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

| | | | | | |
|---|---|---|---|--|--|
| <p style="text-align: center;">A</p> <p>AARP 28:25 ability 11:7 27:6 able 8:25 35:18 about 9:6,23,25 10:20,22 11:7 12:10,11 13:15 20:9 22:11 23:16 29:22 36:9 37:20 40:6,13 43:3,23 49:6 54:9 above 28:2 absorbed 30:16 accept 6:22 accepting 19:22 access 6:6 55:2 accommodate 12:7 38:12 accommodated 11:19 account 3:4 49:9 accountable 25:14 accurately 46:17 achieve 38:17 achieving 39:1 across 12:5 17:16 19:10 27:8 Act 3:8,25 4:9 11:15 13:11 18:5,14 27:21,22 active 23:24 43:5 activities 52:21 actually 7:9 37:14 49:8 addition 4:14 19:9 additional 47:5 48:21 50:13 Additionally 24:24 address 19:19 22:12 adequate 11:13 12:7 adjacent 16:10 adopted 30:20 advance 7:3 26:23 advantage 43:18 advice 30:20 advocacy 24:2 affordable 45:11 afforded 10:10 13:18 African-American 20:18 21:16,17 22:5 after 4:11 7:23 19:6 45:8 48:25 again 8:2 12:17,21 22:16 29:2 44:7</p> | <p>against 42:17 Agenda 27:3 ago 29:20 42:14 agree 15:8,14 agreed 32:24 agriculturally-ba... 38:16 ahead 36:18 38:6 Algonquin 21:4,8 22:1 41:13,15 42:5 algorithm 50:10 alignment 48:17 alike 17:22 allow 4:9 8:5 27:15 27:17 allowed 24:18 allowing 8:17 31:17 allows 19:2 27:12 almost 46:11 along 48:12,17 already 19:20 31:3 32:17 35:25 36:17 37:22 Althoff 43:8 47:19 although 40:3 always 17:12 among 15:18 18:16 24:14 ample 24:12 32:14 analyze 32:15 ancient 50:3 angry 36:12 Annexations 16:6 announced 24:9 another 36:10 52:20 53:17 answer 31:24 54:5 54:8 answers 53:21 anticipated 33:16 anxious 9:7 anybody 43:15 anyone 7:24 12:9 44:20 51:23 52:25 53:16 anything 29:18 50:16 apologize 43:22 appears 30:16 apple 53:17 appointment 6:5 55:1 appreciate 28:23 34:5 apprised 48:4 approach 38:22</p> | <p style="text-align: center;">B</p> <p>back 7:13 30:4 31:12 34:7 47:1 48:25 background 13:10 balanced 37:2 ballot 30:4 31:1 Barrington 45:14</p> | <p>appropriately 35:6 approval 15:6 approximately 33:17 April 1:11 56:7 architects 10:25 area 12:12 13:16 17:21 21:3,6,9,18 22:3 37:15 39:5 40:6 41:23 42:3,4 42:20,21,25 43:18 44:15,16 46:4 55:2 areas 16:7 39:3 40:21 47:24 area's 21:12,14,15 21:20,23 22:5 around 29:15 55:7 Asian 20:24 21:23 22:6 aside 10:14 asked 37:18 Assembly 2:11 3:1 12:2 13:6 23:18 24:20,23,25 25:7 Association 30:1 assumes 38:7 attainment 26:24 attendance 22:19 audience 22:24 23:4 23:11 26:3,9,14 26:17 29:3,12 31:16 34:9,15 37:13 39:9,23 41:7,9 44:25 47:7 49:1 50:15,24 51:7,11,13,19,22 52:1 53:16,18,23 automated 49:25 availability 24:10 available 5:19 7:17 32:22 33:6 avoided 11:2 avoids 24:15 aware 8:4 48:1 away 29:5 awesome 9:18 a.m 1:12 5:23</p> | <p>46:19 based 12:13,14,14 14:8 basis 18:9 Beaubien 47:22 52:8 53:11,14 Beaubien's 46:16 beautiful 9:16 54:3 before 8:8 11:6,12 24:21 28:13,15 43:4 begin 6:25 8:8 behalf 31:21 47:10 behind 30:6 being 8:11,19 12:10 19:4 28:12 30:5 33:21 43:2 45:25 52:7 54:2 55:16 believe 8:13 12:5 32:17 believes 25:17 Berger 52:2 best 10:13 19:16 25:19 53:13 Better 29:25 between 43:7 44:10 Bilandic 6:2 54:21 Bill 18:13 49:1 bipartisan 11:21,22 bit 33:15 53:4 bite 53:17 Blocks 20:3 block-by-block 14:12 board 31:15,20,22 32:3 33:24 37:12 42:12 52:3 bolstering 38:15 booming 44:11 Boone 20:13 Bossert 1:23 both 14:17 47:20 53:7 bought 46:1 boundaries 5:8,9 10:3,18,19,19 12:15 16:18 17:7 17:12 27:8,12 40:24 boundary 3:2 branch 21:8 braving 41:9 Brian 22:22 brief 7:2 13:2,7 briefly 7:21 13:9 49:3 bring 7:8,9</p> | <p>bringing 53:3 brings 18:24 broader 55:6 build 25:14 38:19 building 5:22 6:3 54:19,21 built 45:7,8 bunch 10:15 Bureau 2:14,21 20:5 29:23 business 39:14 47:11 48:9,16 56:8</p> <p style="text-align: center;">C</p> <p>C 56:3 Cal 44:25 call 42:4 55:17 called 7:18 17:2,3 calling 6:6 55:2 calls 27:23 38:18 came 8:3 43:1,20 campaign 31:2 candidacy 36:22 candidate 18:22 19:1 24:4 candidates 4:3 24:17 27:7 31:3 42:2 capacity 5:17 care 35:15 Carlin 41:6,11 Carpentersville 45:6,7,18,23 Cary 21:4 39:19 45:13 casting 49:12 caveat 6:21 census 2:21 3:1 5:18 13:15 14:6 14:11,12 15:16,23 17:14 19:25 20:3 20:4,6 21:16,19 33:14 center 9:21 16:20 47:11 central 16:19 century 36:5 certain 49:6 Certainly 11:17 chair 37:15 42:12 55:17 chairing 2:6 chairman 31:20 37:17 46:9 Chairperson 1:2 challenge 32:3</p> |
|---|---|---|---|--|--|

| | | | | |
|---|--|--|---|---|
| <p>47:17,25 challenges 48:3 Chamber 29:24 chance 53:16 change 20:15 changed 22:4 36:6 changes 14:5 36:6 characteristics 4:22 charge 35:11 Charles 29:7 Charlie 28:24,25 checked 28:22 Chicago 6:4 54:22 56:8 Chief 31:15 choice 4:3 18:22 19:1 24:16 27:7 49:18 choose 15:11 Chris 41:21 43:8 cities 38:20 citizen 25:18,21 32:5 35:3 39:10 40:4 Citizens 26:8,21 city 10:19 22:23 40:16,18,25 41:2 41:16 43:6,6,22 56:8 civic 53:7 civics 41:17 civil 26:25 clear 25:5 closed 30:6 closest 40:6 closing 28:9 coalition 18:18,24 27:3,25 29:21 30:23,24 Code 55:3 coffers 36:19,21 collected 14:10 college 47:12 48:13 come 2:2 7:16 12:23 19:6 30:25 35:18 41:10 48:10 51:1 comes 10:12 52:13 coming 2:19 9:13 22:9 29:5 36:10 41:8 46:22 commence 13:2 comment 11:13 24:19 28:12,18 32:16 49:3,14 comments 6:8,12 46:10 49:4 50:13 50:13 53:10,15</p> | <p>55:4 Commerce 29:24 commission 14:25 15:1,5,7,12,13 committee 1:1,5 2:2 2:6,10 6:1 9:14 10:17 11:22 12:18 19:21 31:17 32:9 32:12,14,20,23 33:1,2,8,11 37:16 41:17,24 50:22,25 55:6,6 committeeman 34:11,17 41:14 committees 50:5 Committee's 51:17 commonality 46:6 46:21,21 commonly 5:5 communities 11:1 11:18 12:5 16:8 17:18 20:11 25:4 25:8,12 27:24 43:3 community 1:9 4:23,25 5:6 12:10 17:19,25 27:14 43:11 45:15,24 48:10,13,16 community's 17:8 compact 4:6 9:8 16:14 17:12 38:18 compactness 16:12 16:16,17,21,24 compared 20:8 compatriot 8:20 complete 9:4 completes 44:19 53:24 compliance 4:11 19:6 complicated 49:11 comply 3:24 component 19:15 compromise 24:14 computer 31:7 50:10 computers 49:16 50:7 54:24 concentrated 17:20 21:25 29:19 concentration 18:15 concern 12:10 concerns 5:7 6:22 12:3 concluded 55:19</p> | <p>condition 26:23 congress 13:20 congressional 3:2 5:12 13:24 14:4 14:17 15:21 16:9 25:10 36:25 40:10 40:19,25 44:1 47:20 50:18 54:12 connected 16:5,10 conservation 38:25 consider 5:15 10:18 18:17 42:21 44:14 44:16 54:15 consideration 38:1 38:24 52:16 considerations 53:2 considered 28:13 considering 4:17 consist 15:1 constituency 47:16 47:23 constituent 35:3 constituents 25:14 constitute 15:5 constitution 3:20 4:5 13:21 14:9 50:11 constitutional 4:12 14:22 19:7 Constitutions 2:25 contain 15:21 contemplating 38:24 contiguous 4:7 9:9 16:3 17:13 33:23 35:14 38:18 42:20 continue 9:1 continued 42:22 continues 28:19 continuing 28:17 contributing 17:25 control 36:7 coordinator 47:13 copy 6:24 31:11 34:6 cordial 51:14 core 16:19 correct 56:10 Council 26:19 counties 16:7 20:13 countless 4:15 country 26:22 county 2:13,14,15 2:16,17 8:23 9:5 10:1,4,9,12,18 12:4,11 13:16 17:10 21:3,7,8</p> | <p>23:14 26:18 28:2 28:4 31:15,20,20 31:22 32:2,3 33:13,19,24 35:4 35:5 37:12,16,21 38:3,9 39:13 40:6 40:21 42:8,12 45:11,19,20 46:11 46:14,18,20 47:12 52:3,8,10,12 56:3 county's 38:25 courageous 53:20 course 8:20 37:21 court 13:22 15:9 16:14 23:7,9 29:9 56:7 covered 19:23 covering 40:22 create 45:14 54:25 created 5:17 creating 14:23 18:17 19:16 creation 27:24 50:4 criteria 16:15 32:24 crossover 18:18,20 27:25 Crystal 21:4 37:14 39:14,19 45:2,12 CSR 56:5,16 culturally 17:21 current 5:8 currently 3:16 41:12 42:1 43:18 C-A-L 45:1 C-A-R-L-I-N 41:12</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">D</p> <hr/> <p>Dan 1:22 13:5 data 6:18 11:8 14:10 15:16 17:14 19:25 20:5 24:11 32:13 54:24,24 Dave 1:20 2:16 8:19 deadline 14:22 30:2 decade 2:21 8:24 20:15 40:11 decades 45:22 December 14:10 decided 35:25 decides 44:5 decision 25:1 30:8 decisions 48:5 50:5 deference 43:16 define 16:12 DeKalb 40:6 deliver 28:6 delivered 14:11</p> | <p>democracy 25:22 Democrat 11:21 democratic 23:20 49:19 Democrats 10:11 10:21 35:11,24 36:2,7,13 demographic 4:20 Demographically 20:14 demographics 46:17,19 described 4:13 describing 25:1 designed 38:11 48:12 desire 7:3 deteriorating 45:24 developed 38:3 development 27:8 37:16 38:18,22,24 47:11 DeYoe 1:21 difference 35:22,22 37:6 differences 46:17 different 10:15 16:13 39:18 45:17 49:16 difficult 16:11 48:4 difficulties 34:14 direct 50:24 direction 34:23 44:12 49:22 director 47:13 disclose 32:12 discloses 32:20 discontiguous 16:8 discuss 13:9 42:3 43:1 discussion 28:18 41:18 disease 52:23 disk 6:23 dispersion 49:12 display 19:19 disrespect 35:21 disruptive 39:25 district 9:6,21 10:7 15:24,25 16:4,14 16:19 17:23 18:20 18:24 19:2,4 25:11 27:12 36:23 39:12,15,20 41:2 41:14 42:16 44:1 44:2 45:4,4 46:5,8 46:16 48:7,18</p> |
|---|--|--|---|---|

| | | | | |
|---|--|--|---|---|
| <p>50:17 52:17 districts 3:3,22 4:5 5:1,13 9:2,5 10:2 10:16 13:24 14:4 15:16,21 16:3,9 17:1,2,3,4 18:8,16 18:18,18,19 20:1 21:10,10 25:2,10 27:13,16,17,25 33:22 35:6 36:16 40:10,25 43:4 46:12 48:12,13 54:13 district's 16:18,20 diversity 11:18 12:13 divided 11:2 12:11 12:12 43:7 dividing 18:15 divisions 10:20 documentary 6:17 documents 50:21 doing 32:1 43:15 56:8 Dominic 40:14 done 8:2 10:13 32:11 35:9 37:23 42:13 44:9,21 45:25 50:9 Donna 56:5,16 Donner 37:12,13 doors 30:7 down 7:17 12:23 draft 11:8 drafters 10:25 drafting 32:24 dramatic 27:10 draw 3:22 5:16 15:16 20:1 54:16 drawing 5:9,11 12:1 27:11 30:9 33:12 48:18 54:12 drawn 18:9 20:3 24:19 25:2,11 30:5,15 35:6 draws 30:11 drive 6:23 30:3 40:7 drums 45:9 due 6:21 34:13 Duffy 47:22 52:8 53:19 DuPage 2:17 during 24:22 42:10 D-O-N-N-E-R 37:14</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">E</p> | <p>each 13:25 15:10,23 16:5 33:22 earlier 18:10 43:17 49:14 easier 43:14 48:15 east 45:17,23 eastern 45:5 46:18 echo 40:8 46:9 52:5 echoes 40:21 ecological 38:23 economic 4:21 5:4 26:23 38:14 economically 17:22 45:8 edge 39:12 educate 30:24 education 24:2 41:25 educational 26:24 effect 14:22 effectively 17:24 effort 6:1 11:22 efforts 9:15 eight 15:2 eighteen 38:5 either 6:6 42:11 55:2 elect 4:2 18:21 19:1 27:6 elected 25:13 31:4,6 election 19:3 53:6 elections 24:17 electoral 4:2,10 18:8 elements 24:9 41:10 embark 9:25 embed 44:1 Emily 1:21 employee 13:5 emulate 45:4 encompassed 4:25 encourage 44:5 encourages 23:24 38:21 end 2:20 11:12 19:18 endeavor 3:19 endorse 42:1 enormous 42:7,9 enough 30:24 46:12 ensure 3:13 ensures 13:18 19:9 25:18 entire 41:2 equal 3:23 4:1,6 10:22 13:19,25 15:18,22</p> | <p>equally 18:7 equipment 54:17 equitable 35:9 Especially 40:20 establish 32:23 33:1 establishing 14:1 ethnically 17:21 even 27:15 36:22,25 39:4 events 43:14 ever 53:7 every 2:21 7:24 14:4 53:21 everybody 33:14 34:22 41:9 42:17 everyone 2:18 8:5 8:11 13:4 26:10 54:1 everything 39:14 evidence 6:17 29:16 55:12 exactly 35:20 49:21 except 50:16 Excuse 23:6 25:24 29:8 exist 5:7 existing 17:6 50:17 expand 44:10 expect 32:5 39:3 expecting 38:15 expert 24:12 expressed 49:6 extent 49:7 e-mail 6:12 19:19 22:12 37:19</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">F</p> <p>fact 53:11 factor 52:22,24 53:1 factors 4:15 17:25 fair 10:22 25:17 29:21 30:3,14,17 30:23 fallen 20:19 familiar 43:6 far 3:10 29:5,17 Farm 29:23 fashion 35:9 fast 46:7 features 38:23 February 14:14 federal 3:25 4:11 13:20 15:19 16:2 18:2,4 19:7 44:5 feel 10:5 28:7 39:16 40:18 52:12</p> | <p>feels 43:24,25 felt 52:13 few 54:4,6 fifteen 3:16 55:10 fifth 40:13 fifty-five 11:23 fight 42:17 52:7 fill 7:12,25 12:22 22:17 filling 36:18,21 final 15:5 25:2 finally 4:8 6:11 13:13 20:24 21:22 find 45:16 46:23,24 47:1 first 2:13 7:4 8:3,13 8:16 9:17 11:22 15:18 22:22 39:1 44:24 49:5 54:6 five 7:7 15:4,13 flash 6:23 floor 6:2 54:21 focus 37:25 41:25 focuses 16:17 folks 31:12 42:23 follow 17:6 following 2:9,25 7:1 24:9 foregoing 56:10 formal 24:9 former 29:13 forth 49:8 fortunate 10:2 42:11 forty-nine 27:3 forum 48:9 forward 7:8 8:21 37:19 48:22 50:14 51:24 fought 42:19 four 3:9 15:2 42:14 45:21 fourteen 16:25 Fox 51:8 fracturing 18:15 Frank 1:18 2:14 Franks 1:17 2:14 8:9,10 9:19,22 37:21 42:19 47:18 frequently 25:5,8 Frey 1:22 13:4,5 Friday 5:23 54:20 from 2:5,13,14,14 2:15,17 3:12 4:17 5:23 7:4 8:7 14:24 15:2,10 16:19 18:22 26:6,7</p> | <p>28:25 29:5,7,9 30:10,11,13 31:5 31:6 34:11,24 36:19 37:9,12 42:15,23 44:24 48:18 49:2 51:3 53:15 54:14 front 7:17 12:24 full 9:5 14:12 fully 46:13 functions 49:25 fundamental 50:5 funding 48:3 further 4:9 28:18</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">G</p> <p>gain 3:17 General 2:11 3:1 12:1 13:6 23:18 24:20,22,24 25:6 gentleladies 37:9 gentleman 40:9 46:15 51:2 gentleman's 37:24 gentleman 37:9 geographic 17:11 17:20 geographical 17:7 geography 16:22 20:4 gerrymandering 35:12 give 13:7 24:25 38:9 39:25 50:19 Given 7:5 giving 30:18 51:15 go 14:21 32:7 36:18 46:14 goal 3:12 goals 38:17 39:1 goes 35:12 going 7:16 11:5 12:21,25 13:12 19:24 20:2 21:2 30:22 31:23,24 32:8,18 35:8,10 35:23 36:1,2,9,12 36:15,16,23,24,25 37:5 44:6,11,23 45:4,5,13,25 48:1 48:4 good 2:1 8:15 11:11 13:4 23:4 26:9 29:2,17 31:16 34:9 41:7 43:10 43:16 Goodman 39:22,24</p> |
|---|--|--|---|---|

| | | | | |
|---|---|---|---|--|
| <p>governance 49:24 governing 33:2 government 23:25 29:25 44:4,5 49:25 governor 14:20,24 18:10 Governor's 11:25 grasshopper 36:8 grateful 37:7 gravity 16:20 great 29:4 greater 27:17 Greeks 50:3 group 7:8 17:20 18:23 19:3 29:21 groupings 27:19 groups 5:6 18:12,21 18:25 32:15 35:15 Grove 51:8 grow 11:18 39:4 grown 8:24 9:6 40:12 growth 10:5 27:11 27:15 38:4,5,8,14 40:20 42:7,9 44:4 44:6,15 45:21 Grundy 20:13 guarantee 36:15 guaranteed 13:20 guess 50:9 guided 3:19 guidelines 13:13 46:7 guiding 15:17 G-O-O-D-M-A-N 39:24</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">H</p> <hr/> <p>half 36:5 40:7 43:22 handled 50:10 happen 36:10 39:11 happened 9:19 20:15 happens 52:19 hard 6:23 42:18,19 46:23 53:20 hat 30:10,11 having 19:11 30:17 43:5,14 48:8 head 41:17 health 26:25 hear 3:12 4:17 5:3 5:10 7:4 8:7 9:7 37:8 54:11 heard 17:24 28:1 42:8 43:2</p> | <p>hearing 1:6 2:7 8:14,21 9:9 12:16 22:3 33:5 40:5 47:2 55:16,19 hearings 3:5,9,15 6:15 8:25 17:15 19:10,13 28:14 32:9 33:3 55:10 held 5:5 13:22 43:18 help 18:22 43:15 44:9 helping 42:14 helps 18:14 her 56:6,11 hereunto 56:6 heritage 38:16 high 1:9 8:17 9:16 9:18 36:8 40:2 46:24 54:3 Hill 37:17 Hills 42:5 45:14 him 39:5 hindered 16:22 Hispanic 20:21 21:20 22:6 26:25 Hispanics 28:3 hold 3:8,10 holding 3:15 17:15 honorable 50:19 53:19 hope 11:10 30:19 31:25 32:18 33:19 34:1 39:24 53:4 54:10 hopelessly 49:11 hoping 8:25 10:6 hosting 54:3 hour 40:7 House 1:1,5 2:1,9 9:4 10:2,7 11:24 14:18 15:24 17:1 24:22 housing 45:7,11 huge 42:16,16 Hultgren 40:17,22 human 49:13 50:1 hundred 46:2 Huntley 21:7 22:1 41:22 42:4 45:13</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">I</p> <hr/> <p>idea 29:17 ideal 15:24 ideas 19:21 22:13 identifies 16:15 identify 17:17</p> | <p>II 45:8 ill 53:11 Illinois 1:10 2:23,24 4:4,8 11:15 12:1,5 13:6,18 14:8,13 14:15 15:9,10 16:25 19:17 20:7 20:18,21 23:18 24:6,20 25:20 27:2,22 29:23,24 29:24 30:12 32:5 33:19 35:4 40:2 45:2 47:11 52:22 53:5 56:1 ilredistricting@g... 6:13 55:8 imagine 45:10 implemented 11:16 important 3:18 10:24 11:4,14 23:20 34:19 importantly 38:15 improve 53:7 inclined 48:10 included 41:1 includes 21:3 24:8 42:4 43:21 including 41:20 incorporate 30:19 increase 20:9,12 23:25 27:6 increased 21:14,24 incumbent 52:24 53:5 Independents 10:22 indicated 7:3 industry 44:6 influence 18:19 19:2,3 26:24 27:17,24 43:3 48:5 influences 24:1 information 3:17 4:20 6:9,12 13:11 24:10 30:14 36:18 55:5 informed 23:24 initial 14:16 54:7 input 12:7 24:13 35:20,23 37:5,9 44:2 54:9 inside 10:3 17:2 instance 31:8 intelligent 53:20 intend 42:1 intention 3:10 8:1,5 intentionally 25:3</p> | <p>interaction 41:19 interest 5:6 17:18 17:19 18:1 25:4 43:3,11 45:15 46:6 interested 4:19,24 7:5 28:17 interests 5:5 17:8 interface 44:10 interpretation 16:23 invited 52:9 involves 16:24 involving 49:16 Iowa 31:8 49:15 50:9 issue 31:3 issues 10:12 24:1</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">J</p> <hr/> <p>J 51:7 Jack 1:17 2:13 8:9 37:21 39:4 42:19 42:24 44:8 45:25 Janet 34:8,10,15 Jim 41:6,11 job 37:24 43:16 jobs 44:6 join 52:9 joined 2:16 17:23 22:18 joint 5:25 Jordan 49:1 Judy 23:5,12 June 14:23 just 4:12 7:21 9:19 10:3 13:6,13 25:25 28:1,9 33:13 40:9 42:8 42:13,19 43:20 48:14 49:2 52:4,5 53:18 J-O-R-D-A-N 49:2</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">K</p> <hr/> <p>K 56:3 Kane 20:13 21:8 40:21 45:11 Kathy 52:1 Kazaitis 56:5,16 keep 10:25 48:1,4 48:14 keeping 25:12 28:10 Ken 31:14,19 39:22 39:23 Kendall 20:13</p> | <p>key 19:15 25:21 kind 9:19 29:15 35:20 48:9 knee 36:8 know 8:23 11:15,16 17:10 23:19 28:6 35:20,25 36:12,13 36:16,20,22 37:22 40:15 43:24,24 46:24 52:18,21 known 17:17 18:13 52:23 knows 44:15,16 52:25 Koehler 31:14,19 Koehler's 46:9 Kurtz 28:25 29:13 K-O-E-H-L-E-R 31:19 K-U-R-T-Z 29:14</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">L</p> <hr/> <p>lack 5:17 Lake 21:4 37:15 39:13,14,19 42:4 45:2,13 46:20 land 38:23 land-first 38:21 Lang 1:2,16 2:1,4 8:18 9:11 12:19 19:20 22:14 23:1 23:6 25:24 26:4 26:12,16 28:20 29:4,8 31:10 34:4 37:11 39:6,21 41:5 44:18 47:2,4 48:20 50:12,20 51:1,9,12,16,21 51:23 53:9,22,24 language 18:12,25 large 18:21 largest 20:11 21:21 26:22 33:18 LaSalle 6:3 54:22 last 3:4 8:24 21:13 21:23 23:12 30:4 30:14 38:5 39:8 41:13 48:23 51:9 51:25 53:16 Lastly 28:9 33:13 later 15:14 Latino 26:22 27:3,4 27:5,10,13,16,18 Latin-American 26:8,21 Lauzen 43:8 law 13:13 15:19</p> |
|---|---|---|---|--|

| | | | | |
|--|--|--|---|---|
| <p>16:2 18:2 19:5,7,9 lawmakers 17:17 Leader 8:18,18 leadership 41:23 League 23:2,13,16 23:22 24:5 25:16 26:8,11,20 29:25 learn 22:11 least 3:9 16:12 24:20 28:14 32:15 33:21 led 32:16 legal 4:14 15:17 legislation 18:11 legislative 3:3 5:12 13:24 14:8,25 17:3 25:9 27:8,12 46:12 54:13 legislature 13:19 14:15,24 30:12,16 less 33:15 40:7 47:21 48:10 letters 51:15 53:21 Let's 8:8 level 4:4 20:4 28:4 life 53:7 lightly 23:21 like 2:8,18 9:14 11:20 12:17,23,24 17:15 25:25 28:11 30:12 31:7 33:14 37:8 40:8,23 42:3 42:22 43:1,12 48:14 49:2,17 50:19 52:12,13 53:10,19 54:2 Likewise 48:8 limit 7:6 limitation 4:18 lines 3:2 listen 17:15 35:19 listening 22:9 little 29:10 33:15 53:4 live 37:14 39:11 41:12 lived 36:5 41:12,16 lives 46:15 living 41:15 local 28:4 41:20 located 5:21 6:2,3 10:8 21:6 location 46:23 long 12:6 look 15:17 17:5,17 19:25 21:2 40:16 49:24 50:8</p> | <p>looking 8:21 13:14 29:15 lot 20:14 36:11 39:4 41:19 46:21 Lou 1:2,16 2:4 8:10 louder 29:11 LULAC 26:18 27:2 lull 44:3</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">M</p> <hr/> <p>M 56:5,16 made 5:19 30:9 32:22 33:6 43:2 50:5,22 Madigan 35:24 Maggie 26:7,10 main 53:1 mainly 30:17 maintaining 25:22 major 24:1 majority 11:21 14:19 15:4 18:23 19:4 21:25 27:16 make 7:12 8:4 9:8,9 12:15,22 22:17 25:25 35:2,10,22 36:25 37:5,25 43:14 48:23 51:3 makers 17:5 18:17 makes 21:9 47:25 making 5:19 11:21 37:24 man 29:7 53:20 mandates 15:20 mansion 11:25 many 3:12 24:6 52:10 Manzullo 40:14 44:9 map 5:14,16,18 6:24 10:20,25 11:5,6,9,17 12:1 14:21,23 15:6,8 17:5 18:17 19:16 21:15,22 22:2 25:11 29:17,21 30:3,8,14,17,20 30:23 32:21 33:12 35:13 45:3 47:3 54:14,16 Mapquest 47:4 maps 4:24 6:9,19,22 14:8,17 20:2 24:14,16,19 25:3 28:12,14 30:5 32:4,10,13,16,25 33:9 50:17 54:23</p> | <p>54:25 55:5,13 Marengo 1:9,10 8:17 9:17 47:1 Martin 26:5 Mary 37:11,13 Marymargaret 47:6,8,8 52:6 matter 33:4 34:19 Maule 47:6,8,9 52:6 Mautino 1:18 2:14 8:19 29:6 maximize 17:7 may 6:8,11 7:24 18:21 50:1,20,24 55:4 Mayor 22:22 McHenry 2:13,15 8:23 9:5 10:1,3,8 10:12 12:4 13:16 21:3,3,7 22:1 23:14 26:18 28:2 31:15,20 32:2 33:13,24 35:4 37:12,16,21 38:3 38:9 42:8 45:19 45:20 46:11,13,18 47:12 52:10 mean 16:8 35:21 45:10 49:23 means 16:4 measure 16:13 meddling 50:1 meet 30:2 meeting 34:19 49:20 meetings 30:18 member 2:5 15:12 22:24 23:4,5,11 26:3,9,11,14,17 26:18 27:3 29:3 29:12 31:16 34:9 34:15 37:13 39:9 39:23 41:7,22 44:25 47:7 49:1 50:15,21,24 51:7 51:11,13,19,22 52:1,3 53:18,23 members 1:25 2:9 2:11 15:2,5,13 30:15 49:13 50:25 mentioned 49:15 Meridian 45:1 Michael 1:19 35:24 microphone 7:10 Midwest 26:18 might 9:21 49:21 Mike 2:15 8:20 9:11</p> | <p>37:22 41:20 42:11 42:23 43:9,23 44:8,15 45:3 Mike's 46:5 million 42:15 mind 11:1 38:4 43:1 48:14 mine 53:23 minimum 3:11 minorities 4:1,10 18:16 minority 18:3,6,12 18:14,21,25 21:21 27:20,23 minutes 7:7 mirrors 15:19 missed 53:12 mission 26:23 Monday 5:23 54:20 more 3:10 15:2,4 16:11,24 18:16 22:11 37:20 39:4 45:16 49:19,19 52:18 53:4,8 morning 2:1,12 8:12 13:4 23:4 26:9 31:16 34:9 41:7 49:21 most 17:23 38:15 mostly 31:23 move 23:2 49:18,21 much 3:17 22:8,13 24:25 28:20 29:4 31:9,13 35:7 39:6 39:21 41:4 43:14 44:18 45:16 46:22 48:15,20 51:12 53:8 55:18 multiple 18:25 25:9 municipalities 16:7 21:5 25:13 38:19 municipality 17:11 must 3:1 13:25 14:18,19 15:13,17 16:4,9 27:11,17 myself 31:21 M-A-G-G-I-E 26:14 M-A-U-L-E 47:9</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">N</p> <hr/> <p>name 2:4 7:14,18 13:5 15:11 23:5,8 23:9,11,12 26:10 26:12 29:13 34:10 34:15 39:8,8,9,23 41:11 44:25 47:7</p> | <p>48:23 51:5,10,25 51:25 52:1 names 15:9 National 26:17 natural 17:11 38:13 necessarily 34:19 35:13 necessary 54:17 need 11:16 43:15 44:23 needing 38:14 needs 7:25 11:18 12:15 neither 24:3 nest 17:1 never 43:2 new 5:9,12 9:21 12:1 13:12 14:17 14:21,23 15:6,16 19:5 20:1 24:19 27:8,11 28:14 next 16:4 26:5,7 28:24 30:9,21 31:14 34:8 37:11 39:7,22 41:5 47:2 nicely 37:3 nine 15:13 ninth 15:12 30:10 nonelected 30:15 nonpartisan 23:23 nonprofit 27:4 north 6:3 40:12 54:22 notes 56:11 nothing 36:6,6 noticed 9:18 45:3 November 30:4 number 3:11 7:2,5 10:21 21:25 46:2 46:10 numbers 40:15 42:8</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">O</p> <hr/> <p>O 56:3,3 obviously 34:22 39:2 46:14 52:14 occurred 46:7 October 15:14 off 44:7 offer 24:16 28:18 office 5:22 24:4 34:23 official 52:2 officials 25:13 34:25 often 16:23 52:11 Oh 23:1</p> |
|--|--|--|---|---|

| | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|
| <p>Okay 23:11 oldest 26:21 once 12:17,21 44:4 44:11 one 5:21 7:10 8:7 9:5 11:23 14:1,1 15:10,11 16:25 17:2 18:20 19:11 23:20 25:18 29:1 33:22 34:21 39:12 40:7,19 41:2,25 41:25 42:25 46:7 46:14,25 47:8 50:25 51:15 52:14 53:21 54:18 ones 33:11 53:13 one-person-one-v... 3:21 15:20 only 6:21 19:6 33:4 45:24 49:10 52:14 on-the-ground 16:22 open 3:14 5:22 25:17 48:9 54:19 opportunities 18:6 24:12 38:14 49:24 opportunity 4:1 8:5 17:8 23:15 28:12 28:16 31:18 34:1 37:7 oppose 24:3 oral 7:22 55:13 order 2:3 15:15 orderly 24:8 ordinance 38:25 organization 4:23 7:14 23:9,23 26:22 48:17 organizations 4:25 27:4 28:7 29:23 orphan 52:12 other 2:10 4:15,21 6:18 16:5 21:5 28:7 29:10 30:11 40:21 42:25 43:21 52:17 53:2 55:5 others 30:1 otherwise 17:22 out 7:12,25 12:22 16:19 22:9,17 30:25 41:10 46:14 47:3 52:7 outcome 19:3 outstanding 42:13 over 3:4 13:12 20:15 33:16 38:5 46:2 51:2</p> | <p>overabundance 52:23 overview 13:7 own 5:16 52:4 54:16,25</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">P</p> <hr/> <p>Pam 41:21 43:8,25 44:16 Panel 8:8 panels 7:8 part 3:5 26:1 27:2 45:6 46:4,20 48:2 50:22 51:3 52:12 54:7 participate 4:2 8:6 18:7 24:11 48:11 participation 3:8 23:24 25:19,21 participatory 49:19 particular 17:25 35:15 42:9,14 parties 7:6 29:16 30:6 31:6 partisan 24:14,15 parts 16:4 21:7 42:5 45:17 52:17 party 11:24 15:3,10 24:3 36:20 41:23 52:21 pass 14:18 passes 14:24 passing 14:16 49:15 past 20:15 22:4 40:11 pattern 40:20 people 3:13 8:8 9:6 15:24 16:1 17:20 19:16 31:5 33:21 35:15 36:11,19 38:10 39:17 42:21 46:10 people's 11:1 percent 20:17,19,22 20:25 38:5,7 percentage 20:12 perhaps 47:2 53:12 period 11:12 perpetual 53:6 person 6:9 14:1 30:10 personal 51:14 petition 30:3,25 physical 38:22 picking 49:3 place 18:5 47:1 Plainfield 34:11,17</p> | <p>plan 14:18,19 15:14 38:4,7,11,17,21 Planning 37:15 plans 18:3 play 4:16 19:6 pleasant 53:8 please 7:11 8:2 39:7 44:22 48:22,23 51:9,24 52:15 pleased 8:15 pleasure 12:18 point 12:15,25 29:20 43:25 points 16:10 Polep 39:7,10 policy 24:1,2 25:20 political 4:21 5:4 10:18,19 11:23 12:15 15:3 17:6 23:23 24:3 26:24 41:18 42:2 49:11 50:3 52:21 politics 10:13 population 2:22 3:4 3:23 4:6 10:6 13:25 14:5 15:19 15:22,23,25 16:20 19:4 20:5,7,9,12 20:16,19,21,25 21:13,14,16,17,20 21:21,23 22:4,6,6 22:7 27:1,10,18 28:3 38:4,9,12 39:3,18 populations 18:7 populous 52:18 portion 47:23 48:7 posed 54:4 possible 3:13,18 17:6 25:1 post 6:15 33:8 posted 55:10 practice 16:21 35:1 precedent 16:15 precedents 50:2 precinct 34:11,16 34:17 precincts 5:1 prepared 7:20 54:5 presence 37:25 present 1:15 2:10 5:2 presentation 7:1,2 7:22 13:1 19:18 22:9,15 43:2 preserving 38:12 president 14:12</p> | <p>23:13 41:18 prevent 18:5,14 previous 49:4 53:13 primarily 21:6 40:12 principle 3:22 14:1 principles 15:17 18:4 24:7 prior 32:21,24 41:15 private 40:3 probably 30:22 36:13 procedure 13:8 procedures 13:10 proceed 13:1 22:21 proceedings 56:9 process 3:6,14 4:2 4:10,16 12:6,6 13:17 14:14 18:8 19:15,24 22:11 23:17,20 24:7,12 25:18 28:11,19 30:5,17 31:25 32:4,7 35:12 49:7 49:10,19 50:10 51:18 procure 38:19 produced 29:16 produces 24:16 productive 25:15 profile 14:13 program 31:7 projected 38:9 promoted 24:6 properly 27:13 proposed 5:14 6:9 6:19 24:14 32:10 32:13,16,21 33:3 33:9 54:14 55:5 55:13 protect 18:11 27:5 protected 27:21 protecting 38:13 protection 27:23 52:24 53:5 provide 4:1 8:1 19:13 28:21 31:11 32:14 34:6 35:13 48:24 50:20 54:25 provided 19:20 providing 38:13 public 1:6,25 3:8 5:18,20 6:6 11:13 12:7 17:15 18:14 19:10 22:2 24:1,1 24:4,13,18 25:19</p> | <p>28:14 30:15,18,24 31:4,5 32:22 33:6 34:23,24 53:3 54:18 55:2 publicity 30:13 public's 30:20 54:9 Puerto 27:1 push 31:4 put 10:13 44:10 45:5,12 P-O-L-E-P 39:10 p.m 5:24</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">Q</p> <hr/> <p>quarter 40:13 question 25:25 35:8 49:17 questions 11:7 31:24 32:8 34:2 54:4,8 Quinn 18:10 quite 53:11 54:6</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">R</p> <hr/> <p>race 18:9 racial 18:12,25 rainy 8:12 raise 49:17 Randall 42:6 44:10 random 15:11 50:4 Randy 40:17 rate 38:8 rationale 24:25 rationaly 25:12 Raymond 51:7 reaction 24:13 read 37:18 realistic 52:25 realities 16:23 really 8:21 9:7 10:20 30:25 34:22 37:2,23 40:23 42:22 44:15,16 46:23 50:15 reason 29:19 48:11 receive 6:18 55:12 recently 28:1 recess 34:13 55:17 recognize 2:8 recommendation 11:3 record 8:1 23:7 26:1,13 50:23 51:4,6 53:10 redistricting 1:1,5 2:2,6,9 3:7 4:16 5:8 6:1 8:14 13:8</p> |
|---|---|--|--|--|

| | | | | |
|--|--|--|---|--|
| <p>13:10,12,17 14:14 14:25 18:3 19:8 19:15,24 23:17,19 24:7 25:17 28:11 28:19 29:18 30:12 32:3 34:25 38:2 51:17 redraw 3:1 14:3 redrawing 14:7 redrawn 40:24 reduction 18:6 reflect 14:5 reflected 27:11 reflects 46:17 regard 46:10 regarding 5:7 40:10 Registration 27:22 related 24:11 relationship 47:15 47:18 relationships 25:15 released 2:22 14:14 relevant 4:19 5:1,11 54:12 religious 4:21 5:5 religiously 17:22 remain 9:8 remember 29:7 46:3 renovation 45:25 reply 51:15 report 20:5 reported 21:19 56:9 reporter 23:7,10 29:9 56:7 reports 21:17 represent 7:14 18:3 27:13 39:17,17 47:16 representation 9:1 10:23 13:19 18:4 18:11 33:20 42:22 43:7 representative 2:5 3:3 5:13 8:9 9:11 12:20 17:2 19:20 21:10 22:18,19 29:4,6,13 36:24 39:13 40:19,22 42:13 43:13,19 44:9 46:16,25 47:18,19,22 48:7 54:13 representatives 24:15 29:1 30:6 41:8,20 43:9 47:20 50:18 52:11</p> | <p>represented 17:9 33:22 39:12 40:14 40:17 49:20 52:8 represents 19:16 25:6 35:16 Republican 34:18 36:19 Republicans 10:11 10:21 request 29:9 require 2:25 requirement 16:11 requirements 4:12 4:15 19:5,8 requires 3:8,20,25 4:5,9 16:3 18:2 requiring 18:17 19:10 rereading 54:7 resident 40:1 residents 3:14 13:18 17:16 19:14 25:20 27:6 resources 5:19 38:13 respect 3:21 responsibility 14:16 14:23 rest 29:5 37:23 40:16 41:1 result 14:3 15:22 40:12 resulted 25:2 results 13:14,15 25:19 retrieving 42:15 return 8:2 Rich 1:23 Rico 27:1 right 10:14 19:11 26:6 30:18 39:11 44:12 50:16 51:2 51:16 rights 3:25 4:9 11:15 13:11 18:5 26:25 27:5,20,21 risen 20:16,22,25 river 45:18 51:8 Rivera 26:7,10 Road 9:19 42:6 44:11 Roeser 46:1 role 4:16 Room 5:22 Rosemary 28:25 29:1,8,12 31:10 route 44:10 46:3</p> | <p>row 7:17 12:24 rules 33:2 rulings 13:23 run 36:24 37:1 running 36:16,17 36:21 R-I-V-E-R-A 26:15</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">S</p> <hr/> <p>safe 44:4 Sager 22:22 same 15:3 28:7 32:6 39:19 48:11 Saturday 1:11 8:12 saying 56:7 schedule 6:5 55:1 scheduled 3:17 7:23 Scheff 51:7 Schmitt 52:2,2 Schmitz 2:17 22:18 school 1:9 8:17 9:16 9:18 40:3 42:16 46:24 54:3 scientific 16:13 screen 19:19 seal 56:6 seats 10:7 second 5:25 49:14 54:20 Secretary 15:10 security 6:22 see 8:15 9:22 11:5,7 20:3 24:19 29:2,4 29:18 36:10 37:3 40:23 52:11 seeing 11:17 seem 43:16 seems 50:8 selected 30:10 selection 31:5 50:4 self 52:4 Senate 6:1 9:5 11:24 14:18 15:25 17:3 18:13 21:9 24:21 32:17 senator 36:24 43:13 47:19,22 senatorial 44:2 senators 43:8 send 47:3 sense 9:9 25:6 49:10 49:11 sentiment 40:9 sentiments 52:6 separate 31:6 September 15:8 series 13:23 46:1</p> | <p>seriously 34:2 serve 15:12 session 11:12 24:22 sessions 53:12 set 24:6 32:24 33:2 36:2 37:4 56:6 seven 7:7 29:22 several 30:1 sewers 45:9 shape 16:18 share 19:14 22:10 23:16 shifts 3:4 short 5:10 7:1 shorthand 56:9,11 shown 14:5 shows 39:2 side 45:6,17,23 46:18 sign 22:24 30:25 56:6 signed 13:13 14:20 18:11 significant 9:20,24 significantly 8:24 sign-in 8:3 Silosky 34:8,10,16 similar 40:8 simply 35:7 since 20:12 36:7 49:13 single 43:12,13 sir 34:4 48:22 50:14 50:23 51:5,12,21 53:17 sister 28:7 sites 53:6 sixth 33:18 skepticism 49:6 Skinner 44:22 45:1 Skokie 2:5 slide-show 7:1 13:1 slim 47:23 slip 7:25 12:22 44:24 48:24 slips 7:12 22:17 44:19 small 47:11 48:6,9 smaller 27:19 smallest 20:4 Sobczak 26:6 social 4:20 5:4 socially 17:21 socioeconomics 12:14 solely 18:9 some 23:16 29:15</p> | <p>30:19 37:8 42:8 46:21 48:17 50:17 53:2 54:8 Someone 51:1 someplace 46:14 something 11:11 30:17 sometimes 16:7 somewhat 49:15 soon 2:16 30:20 sort 23:2 sort 40:20 south 21:25 southeastern 45:18 45:20 46:4 space 19:13 speak 7:11,24 29:10 31:18 34:1 44:24 52:4 speaker 43:17 speaking 20:14 31:21 34:23 40:3 47:10 Special 1:5 2:2 species 49:13 specific 5:3,6 speech 39:25 spell 23:9 26:12 39:8 48:23 51:9 51:25 spelled 29:14 split 10:15 25:4,8 27:18 spoke 40:9 52:6 spoken 37:8 spread 16:18 Springfield 5:21 9:2 54:19 SS 56:2 St 29:7 staff 8:4 stakeholders 47:15 48:2 stalemate 24:15 stand 28:5 standard 15:20 16:15 start 8:9 36:18,20 state 2:4 3:9,14,16 4:4 13:12,19,24 13:25 14:4,15,17 14:18,18 15:11,19 15:21 16:2,9 17:16 18:1 19:5,7 19:11 20:7 23:8 25:23 27:9 28:10 29:1,13 30:11</p> |
|--|--|--|---|--|

| | | | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|
| <p>31:8 32:5 33:19 35:3 36:5,24 39:7 42:15 45:21 46:25 48:22 50:9 51:5 51:24 55:7 56:1 statement 26:1 28:6 28:21 31:12 34:6 35:8,10 37:18 54:8 statements 33:9 states 2:21,24 3:20 13:21 14:3 17:1 27:1 statewide 20:16,19 20:22 state's 13:7 20:24 state-based 48:16 state-wide 8:14 stating 7:25 station 6:6 55:2 stations 5:18 6:10 54:18 statistically 48:6 statistics 28:2 statute 16:14 step 39:1 48:22 50:14 51:24 Steve 39:7,9 still 12:5 33:16 46:13 52:19 Stratton 5:22 54:19 Street 6:3 45:2 strengthening 25:22 strong 47:14,18 strongly 12:6 studying 17:14 subdivision 38:25 subject 33:4 submit 6:8,11 7:20 15:9 19:21 22:12 55:4 substantial 3:22 substantially 4:6 10:8 15:22 suburbs 45:17 suggest 28:14 suggesting 44:17 suggestions 5:9 summarize 7:21 Sun 41:16 43:5,6,22 support 24:3 supporting 32:13 supported 37:4 Supreme 13:22 15:9 sure 7:12 9:8 12:22</p> | <p>22:17 31:24 35:2 36:14 37:24 38:1 42:23 48:24 Surely 46:12 sycamore 40:1,2,11 41:1 system 49:16 50:4 systems 50:3 Szilak 23:5,12 S-C-H-E-F-F 51:11 S-C-H-M-I-T-T 52:3 S-I-L-O-S-K-Y 34:10,16 S-K-I-N-N-E-R 45:1 S-Z-I-L-A-K 23:12</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">T</p> <p>table 7:13 8:3 28:22 31:12 34:6 48:24 tabulation 5:1 take 5:15 7:16 19:24 30:23 34:2 38:1 44:6 51:3 52:15 53:4 54:14 54:23 taken 23:21 33:14 34:13 38:23 49:8 56:11 takes 35:15 taking 32:2,21 talked 43:19,23 talking 39:10 target 15:23 task 3:18 taxes 44:12 Tea 41:23 teacher 40:2 technical 34:14 tell 36:4 37:20 ten 3:5 14:4 21:13 21:23 22:4 30:9 30:21,23 38:6 Terry 43:21 test 16:24 testify 7:4,16 12:22 22:16,25 28:17 44:21,23 51:24 testimony 5:11 6:14 6:15,18 7:7,19,21 8:1 19:22 24:13 48:22,25 49:7 53:25 54:11 55:9 thank 2:19 8:10,11 8:16,18 9:10,13 9:14 11:20 12:17</p> | <p>12:19 22:8,13,14 22:19 23:10,15 25:23 26:4,16 28:16,19,20,23 29:3 31:8,10,12 31:17 33:25 34:2 34:4 37:10 39:5,6 39:20,21 41:4,5,8 41:9 44:17,18 46:22 48:19,20 50:12 51:12,21 53:8,9,22 54:1,2 55:15,17 their 4:3 7:6,25 9:14 12:10,12 14:3 17:24 19:1 19:14 25:14 27:6 27:7 29:17 36:18 36:21 41:17,18 47:23 48:5,7 theory 16:17 thing 34:21 35:18 36:10 52:20 things 37:22 52:15 think 9:7 10:1,24 11:4,14 12:9 35:17 36:8 37:23 38:6 39:18 41:3 46:16 52:22 54:7 thirty 16:13 41:16 though 20:22 21:7 34:18 37:3 thoughts 17:16 19:14 22:10,13 23:16 three 10:7 11:11 41:13 46:12,24 through 5:23 24:2 27:7 31:25 32:7 38:8 45:14 47:1 48:16 54:20 throughout 3:9,16 18:1 Tim 2:17 22:18 41:20 43:9 time 7:10,16 9:15 9:17 11:23,25 32:15 42:10 47:2 timeline 14:7 timely 24:8 times 52:10 timetable 24:10 Tina 37:17 tip 45:21 titles 41:24 today 2:10,19 6:25 8:11 9:15 10:17</p> | <p>12:9,16 19:22 22:10,20 28:5 31:18,21,25 34:1 35:19 37:18 41:10 52:9 54:3,6 55:16 today's 2:6 toddler 39:24 together 10:11 19:1 25:13 27:5 Tom 1:24 total 20:6,8,23 21:12 22:3 totals 2:22 toward 49:18 towards 39:1 town 40:13 townhouses 46:1,2 township 17:11 34:12,18 46:19 track 45:7 traded 43:21 transcend 50:1 transcribe 6:14 transcript 56:10 transcripts 33:5 transparency 3:7 12:8 19:10 32:6 54:9 transparent 32:4 traveling 55:7 triangular 52:7 tries 46:24 true 56:10 trust 34:24 try 10:13 52:15 trying 48:1 Tryon 1:19 2:15 8:20 9:12,13,24 37:22 42:11 43:19 47:19 50:19 51:14 51:20 Tryon's 39:15 45:4 turnout 8:15 two 5:18 8:7 9:4 10:2 11:11 15:9 17:1 18:16 24:20 28:15 29:16 30:5 30:6 32:15 38:7 43:8,9 46:13 49:3 54:18 type 9:1,2 11:3 32:6</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">U</p> <p>under 27:21 40:19 41:2 understand 11:8 15:15 35:17</p> | <p>understanding 23:25 undertake 3:18 undertaking 9:25 unfairly 37:2 unfortunately 40:15 unincorporated 16:6 unique 4:22 United 2:20,24 3:20 13:21 26:11,20 27:1 unless 16:5 unnecessarily 25:4 25:9 unrepresented 39:16 uploaded 6:19 55:14 upset 36:9 urge 42:20 43:12 44:14,16 use 8:17 49:16 51:14,17 used 11:8 14:13 15:16 45:9 uses 20:5 using 19:25 20:3 31:7 U.S 13:22 19:7 27:21</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">V</p> <p>vary 18:1 Venetians 50:6 very 22:8 28:20 29:3 31:8,13 32:4 36:12 39:6,21 41:4 44:18 46:22 47:14,17,23 48:3 48:20 51:12,14 53:20 55:18 vice 37:15 viewing 5:18 6:10 54:18 views 5:4 villages 38:19 visual 16:24 vital 23:20 voice 4:10 28:4 voices 17:24 vote 11:6 14:2 15:4 28:15 32:21 voted 24:21 28:13 voter 5:1 voters 18:22 23:3</p> |
|--|---|--|--|--|

| | | | |
|--|---|---|---|
| <p>23:13,17,22 24:5 24:16 25:5,16 27:18,22 29:25 votes 14:19 voting 3:25 4:8 11:15 13:11 18:5 27:5,20,21 VP 26:18</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">W</p> <hr/> <p>walked 7:13 want 4:17 5:2,3,10 5:16 8:10,16,18 28:9 30:25 31:17 34:24,25 35:2,20 37:25 52:5 53:17 54:1,11,16 55:15 wanted 34:21 War 45:8 watch 28:10 water 16:5 way 12:11,12 28:8 36:3 44:3 46:25 ways 16:13 17:7 50:8 website 6:16,20 22:10 33:10 55:10 55:14 week 11:12 weeks 24:21 28:15 32:15 week's 53:12 weight 53:4 welcome 2:18 51:22 well 8:19 11:19 22:8 24:7 32:19 35:1 38:2,6 39:5 41:17 41:21 53:13 well-known 29:22 well-respected 29:22 went 46:25 were 33:15 38:6 52:8 54:4,6 west 42:5 western 46:20 we'll 7:9 8:7 9:22 11:11 13:2 23:2 44:23 51:3 we're 8:20 9:7 10:6 10:15 11:17,25 12:25 19:24 30:4 35:18 36:9,12 37:4 43:14 44:6 44:11 48:18 52:19 54:5 we've 9:6 19:23</p> | <p>29:9 37:23 42:7 42:10 44:3,15 whatsoever 37:6 while 15:24 36:19 38:12 white 20:16 whole 12:10 35:12 40:18 49:6 Winnebago 2:15 Winters 1:20 2:16 8:19 29:6 wish 7:11 8:4 22:16 24:11 34:5 50:21 wishes 44:21 51:24 53:13 wishing 7:24 witness 7:12,25 12:22 22:17,22 26:5,7 28:24 31:14 34:8 37:11 39:7,22 41:5 44:19,23 47:5 48:24 witnesses 7:3,6,8,23 12:23 13:3 23:8 29:10 33:9,10 Wogan 1:24 51:2 woman 49:5 Women 23:3,13,17 23:22 24:5 25:16 29:25 wonderful 35:18 54:2 wondering 9:20 wonders 47:4 Woodstock 21:4 22:23 26:6 42:20 42:23 49:2 Worboys 28:24 word 47:8 work 10:11 37:22 38:2 42:14 43:10 44:8 47:24 54:24 worked 29:20 42:18 working 25:15 27:4 39:5 47:14 48:15 works 23:25 workstation 5:25 54:20 World 45:8 written 6:18 7:19 19:22 26:1 28:21 31:11 33:8 50:11 55:13 wrong 49:21 www.ilhousedem... 6:16 55:11</p> | <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">Y</p> <hr/> <p>year 2:25 18:10 29:20 30:14 38:8 years 3:5 11:23 14:5 21:13,24 22:5 24:6 30:9,21 30:23 38:6 41:13 41:16 42:14 52:14</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">\$</p> <hr/> <p>\$14 42:15</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">0</p> <hr/> <p>0.6 20:16,19 084-003145 56:5,16</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">1</p> <hr/> <p>1st 15:8 1,832,924 20:20 10:00 1:12 100 33:21 103 33:21 108,734 15:24 12,419,293 20:9 12,830,632 20:8 16 1:11 160 6:3 54:22 193,156 21:13 1960s 13:23 1965 27:22</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">2</p> <hr/> <p>2,027,578 20:23 2,861 21:18 20,000 28:3 20,026 21:20 2000 20:12 21:12 22:3 2000's 20:8 2010 2:20,22 13:14 14:11 15:23 20:6 21:16,19 2011 1:11 23:17 27:23 56:7 2030 38:3,8 21st 14:10 217 6:7,7 55:3 217,468 15:25 22 21:10 233,968 21:14 25th 56:6 26 21:10 275 45:1 28th 34:17</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">3</p> <hr/> <p>30th 14:23</p> | <p>300,000 33:16 308,000 10:6 309,000 33:17 32.5 20:22 38.6 20:25 3976 18:13</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">4</p> <hr/> <p>4:30 5:24 401 5:22 54:19 410,000 20:10 45,000 9:6 47 44:10,11 495,000 38:10</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">5</p> <hr/> <p>5th 15:14 52 21:11 5260 26:19 55-gallon 45:9 558-3036 6:7,7 55:3 580,586 21:1</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">6</p> <hr/> <p>63 21:11 63rd 9:21 64 21:11 41:14 64th 46:8</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">7</p> <hr/> <p>7th 6:2 54:21 70s 45:5</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">8</p> <hr/> <p>8,167,753 20:17 8,200 21:24 8:30 5:23</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">9</p> <hr/> <p>96-1541 18:14</p> |
|--|---|---|---|